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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report and financiateshents (which comprise the income statement, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statemesttarfges in equity, the statement of financial toosi

the statement of cash flows, and the related natés,20) for Morgan Stanley B.V. (the “Companydy f

the year ended 31 December 2017.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The profit for the year, after tax, was €1,547,00016: €3,876,000).
During the year, no dividends were paid or propd2€d.6: €nil).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is the isscamf financial instruments including notes, céatifes
and warrants (“Structured Notes”) and the hedgifnh® obligations arising pursuant to such issuance

The Company was incorporated under Dutch law onefptenber 2001 and has its statutory seat in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands. The business offich@fCompany is at Luna Arena, Herikerbergweg 238,
1101 CM, Amsterdam, The Netherlands.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking and cdiitig entity is Morgan Stanley, which, togethetthwi
the Company and Morgan Stanley’s other subsidiadettakings, form the “Morgan Stanley Group”.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

There have not been any significant changes irCthrapany’s principal activity in the year under ewi
and no significant change in the Company’s princadivity is expected.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Global market and economic conditions

Global economic growth accelerated in 2017 hadgrown by slightly more than its long-term average
rate. Strength was broad-based across both devetammomies and emerging markets. Growth was 2.3%
in the United States (“US”), 2.5% in the Euro awa 1.7% in both Japan and the United Kingdom
(“UK"). In Emerging markets, Chinese growth provedich more resilient than expected at 6.9%, whilst
annual growth in Brazil and Russia returned to fpasiterritory. In terms of policy, the Federal Rege
increased interest rates three times to 1.375% a@neber and began the process of balance sheet
normalization in October. Shortly before year etidy US government passed a fiscal stimulus package,
which included a significant reduction in the héagllcorporate tax rate and personal income tax tuts
Europe, the European Central Bank (“ECB”) exteniie@uantitative Easing program to September 2018
at its October meeting, but halved the size ofritmthly purchases to €30bn from the beginning df&20
The Bank of England raised interest rates by 2%tps November meeting amid above target inflation
The Chinese authorities implemented further meastoeeduce overcapacity and future financial secto
risks, whilst central banks in Brazil and Russiginterest rates materiallp 2017.



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
UK Referendum

It is difficult to predict the future of the UK'’selationship with the European Union (“EU”), which
uncertainty may increase the volatility in the glbfinancial markets in the short- and medium-te@m.23
June 2016, the UK electorate voted to leave the@&W29 March 2017, the UK invoked Article 50 of the
Lisbon Treaty, which triggered a two-year perioghjsct to extension (which would need the unanimous
approval of the EU member states), during which th€ government is expected to negotiate its
withdrawal agreement with the EU. Absent any extansthe UK is expected to leave the EU in March
2019. The terms and conditions of the anticipatéthdrsawal from the EU, and which of the several
alternative models of relationship that the UK ntigltimately negotiate with the EU, remain uncertai
However, the UK government has stated that the UKIlgave the EU single market and will seek a
phased period of implementation for the new refesiop that may cover the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to financial institutions wisignificant operations in Europe, such as Morgan
Stanley. Since any transition or implementationiquey and the eventual successor arrangements eequir
agreement of both the UK and the EU, there iskathat these arrangements may not be agreed byhMarc
2019. Potential effects of the UK exit from the Bhid potential mitigation actions may vary consitigra
depending on the timing of withdrawal and the matof any transition, implementation or successor
arrangements.

Overview of 2017

The issued Structured Notes expose the Comparhetagk of changes in market prices of the undeglyi
securities, interest rate risk and, where denormthat currencies other than Euros, the risk of gharn
rates of exchange between the Euro and the ottexare currencies. The Company uses the contriats t

it purchases from other Morgan Stanley Group uladérgs to hedge the market price, interest rate and
foreign currency risks associated with the issuaridhe Structured Notes.

The income statement for the year is set out or 8y The Company reported a profit before incoaxe t
of €2,060,000 for the year ended 31 December 2€dipared to a profit before income tax of €5,160,00
for the prior year.

The profit before income tax for the year endedBicember 2017 primarily comprises management
charges recognised in ‘Other income’ of €1,304,0@0mpared to €5,916,000 received in the prior year.
Management charges received have decreased asllakthe Company and Morgan Stanley Group
updating its Global Transfer Pricing Policy, effeetl January 2017. This change in transfer prigiolicy

is consistent with evolving transfer pricing guidarunder thérganisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development (“OECD”)'sand evolving regulatory guidance. The transfacipg method selected for
implementation is one of the methods specified urtde 2017 OECD Transfer Pricing Guidelines for
Multinational Enterprises and Tax Administratioifie profit before income tax for the year ended7201
also includes prior year costs of €756,000 incluptethe calculation of the yield payable on Conixet
Preferred Equity Certificates (“CPECSs”") explainachbte 8 and recognised in ‘Interest expense’.

The Company has recognised a net gain of €452,88%@ financial instruments classified as held for
trading compared to a net gain of €31,323,000 fier prior period, with a corresponding net loss of
€452,489,000 on financial instruments designatethiatvalue through profit or loss (2016: net laxfs
€31,323,000). This is due to fair value changesbatible to market movements on the securities
underlying Structured Notes hedged by derivatiVassified as held for trading.

The statement of financial position for the Compasget out on page 13. The Company’s total asse®i
December 2017 are €9,481,825,000, a decrease (238000 or 1% when compared to 31 December 2016.
Total liabilities of €9,442,042,000 represent ardase of €88,805,000 or 1% when compared to tatailities

at 31 December 2016. These movements are prinatiiputable to the value of issued Structured Blated the
related hedging instruments held at 31 Decembei7.2@iructured Notes reflected in ‘Financial liatis
designated at fair value through profit or lossvdaecreased since 31 December 2016 as a resulitafities
offset by new issuances and fair value movementkémeriod. The decrease in the value of issuaettsred
Notes has resulted in a net decrease in the vélilne oelated hedging instruments.



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Overview of 2017 (continued)

The performance of the Company is included in tbsuits of the Morgan Stanley Group which are
disclosed in the Morgan Stanley Group’s Annual Repa Form 10-K to the US Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Morgan Stanley Group manages fspkeformance indicators on a global basis but in
consideration of individual legal entities. Forsthieason, the Company’s Directors believe that ighog
further performance indicators for the Company lfitseould not enhance an understanding of the
development, performance or position of the busidshe Company.

The risk management section below sets out the @oyp and the Morgan Stanley Group's policies for
the management of liquidity and cash flow risk atfier significant business risks.

Risk management

Risk is an inherent part of the Company’s busireswity. The Company seeks to identify, assess)iton
and manage each of the various types of risk iragbin its business activities, in accordance wéfirngd
policies and procedures. The Company has develipedvn risk management policy framework, which
leverages the risk management policies and proesdufrthe Morgan Stanley Group, and which include
escalation to the Company’s Board of Directors nappropriate senior management personnel asawell
oversight through the Company’s Board of Directors.

Set out below is an overview of the Company’s pedicfor the management of financial risk and other
significant business risks. More detailed qualtatand quantitative disclosures about the Company’'s
management of and exposure to financial risksrarleded in note 14 to the financial statements.

Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of losses for a fiosior portfolio due to changes in rates, foregchange,
equities, volatilities, correlations or other marfactors.

Market risk management policies and proceduresh®iCompany are consistent with those of the Morgan
Stanley Group and include escalation to the ComjpaBpard of Directors and appropriate senior
management personnel.

The Company manages the market risk associateditwitrading activities at both a trading divisiand
an individual product level.

It is the policy and objective of the Company nobe exposed to net market risk.
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising wherborrower, counterparty or issuer does not miset i
financial obligations to the Company. Credit risicludes the risk that economic, social and politica
conditions and events in a foreign country will exbely affect an obligor’s ability and willingnessfulfil
their obligations. Further detail on the Morganrg Group’s management of country risk is set out
below.

Credit risk management policies and procedureshi®rCompany are consistent with those of the Morgan
Stanley Group and include escalation to the ComjpaBpard of Directors and appropriate senior
management personnel.

Credit risk exposure is managed on a global basisia consideration of each significant legal gntit
within the Morgan Stanley Group. The credit risk nagement policies and procedures establish the
framework for identifying, measuring, monitoringdaoontrolling credit risk whilst ensuring transpacg

of material credit risks, compliance with estabdidhimits and escalating risk concentrations torappate
senior management.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Risk management (continued)
Country risk exposure

Country risk exposure is the risk that events maffecting, a foreign country might adversely afféhe
Company. “Foreign country” means any country othan The Netherlands. Sovereign risk, by contrast,
is the risk that a government will be unwilling wmable to meet its debt obligations, or renegehendebt

it guarantees. Sovereign risk is single-name riskaf sovereign government, its agencies and gusednt
entities.

The Company enters into the majority of its finah@isset transactions with other Morgan Stanleyu@ro
undertakings primarily in Luxembourg and the .UBth the Company and the other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings are wholly-owned subsidiariethefsame ultimate parent entity, Morgan Stanlay.

a result of the implicit support that would be po®d by Morgan Stanley, the Company’s country igsk
considered a component of the Morgan Stanley Geoengdit risk.

Country risk exposure is measured in accordancdn wie Morgan Stanley Group’s internal risk
management standards and includes obligations $mmreign governments, corporations, clearing touse
and financial institutions. The Morgan Stanley Graactively manages country risk exposure through a
comprehensive risk management framework that coesbimedit and market fundamentals and allows the
Morgan Stanley Group to effectively identify, mamiand limit country risk.

The Morgan Stanley Group conducts periodic stres8ng that seeks to measure the impact on itdtcred
and market exposures of shocks stemming from negaitonomic or political scenarios. When deemed
appropriate by the Morgan Stanley Group’s risk ngans, the stress test scenarios include possible
contagion effects. The analysis, and the resulthefttress tests, may result in the amendmemtndsior
exposure mitigation.

Liquidity funding risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Compawill be unable to finance its operations due t@sslof
access to the capital markets or difficulty in l@pting its assets. Liquidity risk encompasses the
Company’s ability (or perceived ability) to meet financial obligations without experiencing sigeafnt
business disruption or reputational damage that tinagaten the Company’s viability as a going concer
Liquidity risk also encompasses the associatedifigndsks triggered by the market or idiosyncraicess
events that may cause unexpected changes in fundedp or an inability to raise new funding.

The primary goal of the Morgan Stanley Group’s iiitity risk management framework is to ensure that t
Morgan Stanley Group, including the Company, hasess to adequate funding across a wide range of
market conditions and time horizons. The framewsrlesigned to enable the Morgan Stanley Group to
fulfil its financial obligations and support the emution of the Company’s business strategies. The
framework is further described in note 14.

The Company continues to actively manage its clagite liquidity position to ensure adequate resesirc
are available to support its activities, to enable withstand market stresses.

The Company hedges all of its financial liabilitiesth financial assets entered into with other Maorg
Stanley Group undertakings, where both the Commantly other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the same parent, Morgtanley.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Risk management (continued)
Operational risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss, ord#fmage to the Company’s reputation, resulting from
inadequate or failed processes, people and sysberfrom external events (e.g. fraud, theft, legadl a
compliance risks, cyber-attacks or damage to physissets). Operational risk relates to the folimuiisk
event categories as defined by Basel Capital Stdedanternal fraud; external fraud; employment
practices and workplace safety; clients, producis lausiness practices; business disruption ancekrmsyst
failure; damage to physical assets; and executielivery and process management. Legal, regulatody
compliance risk is discussed below under “Legautatory and compliance risk”.

The Company may incur operational risk across tiles€ope of its business activities.

The Company has established an operational riskefweork to identify measure, monitor and controkris
across the Company. This framework is consistettt thie framework established by the Morgan Stanley
Group and includes escalation to the Company’s @a@drDirectors and appropriate senior management
personnel. Effective operational risk managemergsisential to reducing the impact of operationsk ri
incidents and mitigating legal and reputationaktsisThe framework is continually evolving to accofor
changes in the Company and to respond to the amgngigulatory and business environment. The
Company has implemented operational risk data asdsament systems to monitor and analyse internal
and external operational risk events, to assessdnss environment and internal control factors &nd
perform scenario analysis. The collected data eMsnare incorporated in the operational risk cépita
model. The model encompasses both quantitativegaatitative elements. Internal loss data and soenar
analysis results are direct inputs to the capitaldeh while external operational incidents, busines
environment and internal control factors are evaldias part of the scenario analysis process.

In addition, the Company employs a variety of fskcesses and mitigants to manage its operatitsial r
exposures. These include a strong governance frarkew comprehensive risk management programme
and insurance. Operational risks and associat&dexposures are assessed relative to the riskataler
reviewed and confirmed by the Board and are pisait accordingly. The breadth and range of operatio
risk are such that the types of mitigating actdstiare wide-ranging. Examples of activities include
enhancement of defences against cyber attackspfusgal agreements and contracts to transfer and/
limit operational risk exposures; due diligence;plementation of enhanced policies and procedures;
exception management processing controls; and gatipa of duties.

Primary responsibility for the management of ogerel risk is with the business, the control groapsl

the business managers therein. The business mamageérttain processes and controls designed toifgent
assess, manage, mitigate and report operatiorial Esch of the business segments has a designated
operational risk coordinator. The operational gslordinator regularly reviews operational risk ssw@and
reports to the Company’s senior management witliohebusiness. Each control group also has a
designated operational risk coordinator and a fofem discussing operational risk matters with the
Company’s senior management. Oversight of operatioisk is provided by the Operational Risk
Oversight Committee, regional risk committees aadia@ management. In the event of a merger; joint
venture; divestiture; reorganisation; or creatibra mew legal entity, a new product or a businestvigy,
operational risks are considered, and any necesbarnges in processes or controls are implemented.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Risk management (continued)
Operational risk (continued)

The Operational Risk Department provides oversafhbperational risk management and independently
assesses measures and monitors operational riskOpérational Risk Department works with the bussne
divisions and control groups to help ensure a parent, consistent and comprehensive framework for
managing operational risk within each area andssctbe Company. The Operational Risk Department
scope includes oversight of the technology and dskamanagement programmes (e.g. cybersecurityg), a
fraud risk management and prevention programmeaasgpplier management (vendor risk oversight and
assessment) programme. Furthermore, the OperatiRisd Department supports the collection and
reporting of operational risk incidents and the cetion of operational risk assessments; provides th
infrastructure needed for risk measurement and mskagement; and ensures ongoing validation and
verification of the Company’s advanced measurerapptoach for operational risk capital.

Business Continuity Management is responsible deniifying key risks and threats to the Company’s

resiliency and planning to ensure that a recovérgtegy and required resources are in place for the
resumption of critical business functions followirg disaster or other business interruption. Disaste
recovery plans are in place for critical facilitiesd resources, and redundancies are built inteythEms

as deemed appropriate. The key components of thep&uoy’'s Business Continuity Management

Programme include: crisis management; businessveeg@lans; applications/data recovery; work area
recovery; and other elements addressing managearalysis, training and testing.

The Company maintains a programme that overseescyher and information security risks. Our
cybersecurity and information security policies designed to protect the Company’s client and eygeo
data against unauthorised disclosure, modificatiomisuse and are also designed to address regulato
requirements. These policies and procedures covamad range of areas, including: identification of
internal and external threats, access control, datarity protective controls, detection of maligoor
unauthorised activity, incident response and regoptanning. The Company has also established ipslic
procedures and technologies to protect its compuated other assets from unauthorised access.

In connection with its ongoing operations, the Camputilises the services of external vendors, tliic
anticipates will continue and may increase in tieire. These services include, for example, outsslr
processing and support functions and consultingatiner professional services. The Company manages i
exposures to these services through a variety adnmesuch as the performance of due diligence,
consideration of operational risk, implementatidnservice level and other contractual agreemenmtd, a
ongoing monitoring of the vendors’ performance. T@mpany maintains a supplier risk management
programme with policies, procedures, organisatijmvernance and supporting technology that aligrih wi
our risk tolerance and is designated to meet régylaequirements. The programme includes the aolopt
of appropriate risk management controls, includingt not limited to information security, operatabn
failure, financial stability, disaster recoveratyili reputational risk, safeguards against corruptand
termination.

Legal, regulatory and compliance risk

Legal, regulatory and compliance risk includesrikk of legal or regulatory sanctions, materiabficial
loss; including fines, penalties, judgements, dassagnd/ or settlements or loss to reputation wttieh
Company may suffer as a result of a failure to dyrgth laws, regulations, rules, related self-riagory
organisation standards and codes of conduct apfgida our business activities. This risk alsdudes
contractual and commercial risk, such as the iigit & counterparty’s performance obligations wél b
unenforceable. It also includes compliance withtiAMoney Laundering, anti-corruption and terrorist
financing rules and regulations. The Company isegally subject to extensive regulation in the etiéint
jurisdictions in which it conducts its business.
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Risk management (continued)
Legal, regulatory and compliance risk (continued)

The Company, principally through the Morgan Stan{ésoup’s Legal and Compliance Division, has
established procedures based on legal and reguli@quirements on a worldwide basis that are design
to facilitate compliance with applicable statutcapd regulatory requirements and to require that the
Company’s policies relating to business condutiicetand practices are followed globally.

In addition, the Company has established procedorestigate the risk that a counterparty’s perfanoe
obligations will be unenforceable, including comsition of counterparty legal authority and capacit
adequacy of legal documentation, the permissibiitya transaction under applicable law and whether
applicable bankruptcy or insolvency laws limit dtea contractual remedies. The heightened legdl an
regulatory focus on the financial services indugbrngsents a continuing business challenge for the
Company.

Culture, values and conduct of employees

All employees of the Morgan Stanley Group are antahie for conducting themselves in accordance with
the Morgan Stanley Group’s core valuestting Clients First, Doing the Right Thing, Leadiwith
Exceptional Ideas, and Giving Backhe Morgan Stanley Group is committed to reinfogcand
confirming adherence to the core values through governance framework, tone from the top,
management oversight, risk management and contal,a three lines of defence structure (business,
control functions such as Risk Management and Ciamg$, and Internal Audit). The Morgan Stanley
Group’s Board is responsible for overseeing the ddarStanley Group’s practices and procedures mglati
to culture, values and conduct, as set forth inMloegan Stanley Group’s Corporate Governance Rdici
The Morgan Stanley Group’s Culture, Values and Goh&€ommittee, which is part of the Enterprise Risk
Management framework, is the senior management é¢tbeenthat oversees the Firm-wide culture, values
and conduct program. A fundamental building blo€khis program is the Morgan Stanley Group’s Code
of Conduct, which establishes standards for emgla@duct that further reinforce the Morgan Stanley
Group’s commitment to integrity and ethical condu€tery new hire and every employee annually must
attest to their understanding of and adherenchedCode of Conduct. The annual employee performance
evaluation process includes an evaluation of engdogonduct related to risk management practices and
the Morgan Stanley Group’s expectations. The Moigtamley Group also has several mutually reinfaycin
processes to identify employee conduct that maye l@v impact on employment status, current year
compensation and/ or prior year compensation. kamele, the Global Incentive Compensation Discretio
Policy sets forth standards for managers when ngakimual compensation decisions and specifically
requires managers to consider whether their empbgéfectively managed and/or supervised risk obntr
practices during the performance year. Managemamindttees from control functions periodically meet
to discuss employees whose conduct does not medtitim’s standards. These results are incorporated
the employees’ performance evaluation, which linkscompensation and promotion decisions. The
Morgan Stanley Group’s clawback and cancellationvisions, which permit recovery of deferred
incentive compensation and cover a broad scopempliogyee conduct, including any act or omission
(including with respect to direct supervisory resgibilities) that constitutes a breach of obligatio the
Morgan Stanley Group or causes a restatement dfittgan Stanley Group’s financial results, congtisu

a violation of the Morgan Stanley Group’s globakrimanagement principles, policies and standands, o
causes a loss of revenue associated with a positiowhich the employee was paid and the employee
operated outside of internal control policies.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Going Concern

Retaining sufficient liquidity and capital to witlamd market pressures remains central to the Morgan
Stanley Group’s and the Company’s strategy. Adddily, the Company has access to further Morgan
Stanley Group capital and liquidity as required.

Taking the above factors into consideration, thee@ors believe it is reasonable to assume that the
Company will have access to adequate resourcesriiinoe in operational existence for the forese=abl
future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt thengpconcern basis in preparing the annual repodt an
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The following Directors held office throughout thear and to the date of approval of this report:

H. Herrmann

S. Ibanez

P.J.G. de Reus

L.P.A. Rolfes

TMF Management B.V.

The Company has taken notice of Dutch legislatifiactve as of 13 April 2017, as a consequence of
which the Company should take into account as naschossible a balanced composition of the Board of
Directors in terms of gender, when nominating quaapting Directors, to the effect that at leastg@dcent

of the positions should be held by women and at188 percent by men. Currently the compositiothef
Board of Directors deviates from the gender divgrsbjectives. When appointing a Director, the Bbaf
Directors considers the gender diversity objectiassappropriate

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 27 February 2018, the maturity date of the CPE&samended to 49 years from the date of issuance.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company qualifies as an organisation of pubiterest pursuant to Dutch and EU law and has
established its own audit committee which compliéth the applicable corporate governance rules and
composition requirements as detailed in the ArsicdeAssociation of the Company.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Accountants B.V. have expressed theirimgihess to continue in office as auditor of the @any
and a resolution to re-appoint them will be progbaethe forthcoming annual general meeting.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

24 April 2018
H. Herrmann S. Ibanez P.J.G. de Reus
L.P.A. Rolfes TMF Management B.V.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The Directors, the names of whom are set out bedowfirm to the best of their knowledge:

- the financial statements have been prepared éordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the Internatiohadounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and as
endorsed by the EU and give a true and fair viethefassets, liabilities, financial position andffir
or loss of the Company; and

- the management report represented by the Digatport includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the positidcheofCompany together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Compfaces.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

24 April 2018
H. Herrmann S. Ibanez P.J.G. de Reus
L.P.A. Rolfes TMF Management B.V.



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2017
Note

Net gains on financial assets classified as heldr&ding

Net gains/ (losses) on financial liabilities cldiesl as held for
trading

Net gains on financial instruments classified as ta
for trading

Net gains on financial assets designated at féirevidnrough
profit or loss

Net losses on financial liabilities designatedaat ¥alue
through profit or loss

Net losses on financial instruments designated aaif value
through profit or loss

N

Interest income
Interest expense 4

Other income 5
Other expense 6

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax expense 7

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2017 2016
€000 €000
319,694 122,235
132,795 (90,912)
452,489 31,323
233,378 153,000
(685,867)  (184,323)
(452,489) (31,323)
11,843 14,750
(4,511) (15,105)
1,304 5,916
(6,576) (401)
2,060 5,160
(513) (1,284)
1,547 3,876

All operations were continuing in the current amibpyear.

The notes on pages 15 to 61 form an integral gdheofinancial statements.

10



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2017

Note 2017 2016
€'000 €'000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,547 3,876
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently tprofit or loss:
Changes in fair value attributable to own credik on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through praifitloss 7 - (3,330)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFTER INCOME
TAX FOR THE YEAR - (3,330)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,547 546

The notes on pages 15 to 61 form an integral gdhecfinancial statements.

11



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2017

Debt

valuation
Share adjustment Retained Total
capital reserve  earnings equity
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Balance at 1 January 2016 15,018 3,330 19,342 37,690
Profit for the yee - - 3,87¢ 3,87¢
Other comprehensive Ic - (3,330 - (3,330
Total comprehensive income - (3,330) 3,876 546
Balance at 31 December 2016 15,018 - 23,218 38,236

Profit and total comprehensive income for the

year - - 1,547 1,547
Balance at 31 December 2017 15,018 - 24,765 39,783

The notes on pages 15 to 61 form an integral gdhecfinancial statements.

12



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

Registered number: 34161590

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

Note 2017 2016
€000 €000
ASSETS

Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 432 716
Trade receivables 25,724 58,482
Other receivables 19 1,792,304 1,648,424
1,818,460 1,707,622
Financial assets classified as held for trading 9 592,979 590,179
Financial assets designated at fair value througfitfor loss 10 7,065,575 7,269,070
Current tax assets 4,811 2,212
TOTAL ASSETS 9,481,825 9,569,083

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Convertible preferred equity certificates 8 1,125,281 1,125,281
Trade payables 600,127 480,022
Other payables 56,382 59,216
1,781,790 1,664,519
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin 9 319,651 514,302
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgb profit or loss 10 7,340,601 7,352,026
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,442,042 9,530,847
EQUITY
Share capital 11 15,018 15,018
Retained earnings 24,765 23,218
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 39,783 38,236
TOTAL EQUITY 39,783 38,236
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 9,481,825 9,569,083

These financial statements were approved by thedBared authorised for issue on 24 April 2018.

Signed on behalf of the Board

H. Herrmann S. Ibanez P.J.G. de Reus
L.P.A. Rolfes TMF Management B.V
Director

The notes on pages 15 to 61 form an integral gdheofinancial statements.

13



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense

Operating cash flows before changes in operati
assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets
Increase in loans and receivables, excluding ead
short-term deposits

Increase in financial assets classified as foeld
trading

Decrease/ (increase) in financial assets detadra fair value
through profit or loss

Changes in operating liabilities
Increase in financial liabilities at amortissmbt

Decrease in financial liabilities classifiedresdd for
trading

(Decrease)/ increase in financial liabilitiesdjnated at fair
value through profit or loss

Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/ FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
YEAR

2017 2016
€000 €000
1,547 3,876

(11,843) (14,750
4,511 15,105
513 1,284
(5,272) 5,515
(99,322 (231,733)
(2,800 (94,882)

203,495 (455,134)

101,373 (781,749)

113,042 221,533

(194,651 (425,541)

(11,425 983,043
(93,034 779,035
43 53
(282) (98)
(3,112) (2,539)
(3,351) (2,584)
(284) 217
(284) 217
716 499
432 716

The notes on pages 15 to 61 form an integral gdhecfinancial statements.

14



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in ThéhBidands, at the following address:
Luna Arena, Herikerbergweg 238, 1101 CM, Amsterdahg Netherlands.

The Company is engaged in the issuance of StruttNiies and the hedging of the obligations arising
pursuant to such issuances with prepaid equityré@sucontracts, loans designated at fair valueugh
profit or loss and derivatives entered into withrglan Stanley Group undertakings.

The issued Structured Notes expose the Comparhetagk of changes in market prices of the undeglyi
securities, interest rate risk and, where denorthat currencies other than Euros, the risk of gharn
rates of exchange between the Euro and the ottexare currencies. The Company uses the contriaats t

it purchases from other Morgan Stanley Group uladérgs to hedge the market price, interest rate and
foreign currency risks associated with the issuaridhe Structured Notes.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

The Company has prepared its annual financialrsetiés in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB a
adopted by the EU, Interpretations issued by tiRSlnterpretations Committee and Dutch law.

New standards and interpretations adopted during tle year

The following amendments to standards and intesicets relevant to the Company’s operations were
adopted during the year. Except where otherwesedt these amendments to standards and inteipnstat
did not have a material impact on the Company’arfgial statements.

An amendment to IAS 7Statement of Cash FloWwsas issued by the IASB in January 2016, as phattie
Disclosure Initiative project. The amendment iplegable in annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017. The amendment was endorsed by thie Bbvember 2017.

An amendment to IAS 12ncome Taxes'(“IAS 12") was issued by the IASB in January 20%6r
application in annual periods beginning on or aftefanuary 2017. The amendment was endorsed by the
EU in November 2017.

There were no other standards or interpretatidesaat to the Company’s operations which were aslbpt
during the year.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financiatest@nts, the following standards, amendments talatals
and interpretations relevant to the Company’s djmra were issued by the IASB but not yet mandatory
Except where otherwise stated, the Company doeexpact that the adoption of the following standard
amendments to standards and interpretations wilk lea material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments(“IFRS 9”) was issued by the IASB in November 20@eissued in October
2010, amended in November 2013, and revised aisduedl by the IASB in July 2014. IFRS 9 is
applicable retrospectively, except where othenpigscribed by transitional provisions of the staddand

is effective for annual periods beginning on oeaft January 2018. The standard was endorsed itihe
in November 2016. The Company early adopted ifaigm the requirements relating to the presentatio
of fair value movements due to changes in creslit on financial liabilities designated at fair valthrough
profit or loss, but has not early adopted the reimgirequirements of IFRS 9.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

New standards and interpretations not yet adoptedcpntinued)

A further amendment to IFRS 9, relating to the aotimg treatment of financial instruments with
prepayment features including negative compensati@s issued by the IASB in October 2017. The
amendment is applicable retrospectively, exceptravlatherwise prescribed by transitional provisiofis
the amendment, and is effective for annual perlmtsnning on or after 1 January 2019. The amendment
was endorsed by the EU in March 2018. The Compasyearly adopted this amendment from 1 January
2018.

The main aspects of IFRS 9 which impact the Compaayits requirements relating to:

» Classification and measurement of financial assets
The classification and measurement of financiat@swill depend on how these are managed
(the entity’s business model) and their contractaah flow characteristics. Measurement will be
at amortised cost, fair value through other comgnsive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL").

* Impairment of financial assets
The impairment requirements are based on expectstit dosses and apply to financial assets

measured at amortised cost and FVOCI

The Company has undertaken a project to implenfeéRS19. As part of this project, the Company has
completed an evaluation of its business modelsaneview of the contractual terms of financial &sse
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI under IFRS @®nsure that they are compatible with such
classifications.

As a result of this evaluation, certain financissets will move from designated at FVPL under |83
mandatorily at FVPL under IFRS 9. There is no impecthis on retained earnings as at 1 January 2018
No financial liabilities will change classification

The Company has also completed its implementati@irevised approach for asset impairment, recgrdin
an expected credit loss (“ECL") allowance for @tlancial instruments not held at FVPL.

For intercompany receivables, presented within &Dtleceivables’ in the statement of financial posita
model-based approach has been adopted, the kestaspevhich are:

* The allowance is based on ECLs associated witlpdissible defaults in the next twelve months,
unless there has been a significant increase ditaisk since origination, in which case the ECL
is based on all possible defaults over the totpketed life of the instrument.

» ldentifying whether assets have experienced afggnt increase in credit risk since origination.
When determining whether credit risk has increasigdificantly since initial recognition, the
Company considers both quantitative and qualitainfermation and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and expert cregk assessment, including forward-looking
information.

» Estimating ECLs, reflecting an unbiased and thébabdity-weighted impact of multiple future
economic scenarios. ECLs are calculated usingthrain components: probability of default
(“PD"), the expected loss given default (“LGD”) aad estimated exposure at default (“EAD”).
These parameters are generally derived from inflgrdaveloped statistical models, combined
with historical, current and forward-looking custemand macro-economic data.

For trade receivables, a simplified approach hasnbedopted in line with the standard, whereby an
allowance is recognised for the lifetime ECLs of thstrument. Practical expedients have been eredloy

to calculate the ECLs for trade receivables. Fanes@ortfolios of financial assets, ECLs have been
estimated to be close to zero, reflecting the steorh nature of the trade receivable.

The impact of the implementation of the ECL impamnhapproach on retained earnings as at 1 January
2018 is not material to the Company.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
New standards and interpretations not yet adoptedcontinued)

Under the transitional provisions of the Standérd,Company’s opening balance sheet at the datetiaf
application (1 January 2018) will be restated, withrestatement of comparative periods. However, t
Company will update the presentation of its prims@atements on transition to IFRS 9 and the conipara
period will be represented to align to the new farim the financial statements.

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenigds issued by the IASB in June 2017 for applicatio
in annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janu®302 The Company is currently assessing the impiact
IFRIC 23 on its financial statements.

As part of the 2015-2017 Annual Improvements Cyalilished in December 2017, the IASB made
amendments to the following standard that is relet@the Company’s operations: IAS 12, for applma
in accounting periods beginning on or after 1 Jan@a19.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Company are prepargler the historical cost basis, except for gerta
financial instruments that have been measuredratdhue as explained in the accounting policielewe

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s acconting policies

No judgements other than those involving estimationted below have been made in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies thatehbad a significant effect on the amounts recognise
the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial stateegquires management to make judgements involving
estimates and other assumptions regarding the ti@uaf certain financial instruments, impairmerit o
assets, and other matters that affect the finastaééments and related disclosures.

For further details on the fair value of certaisats and liabilities, see accounting policy now) 3nd note
16. Further details on the impairment of finanais$ets are included in accounting policy note 3(f).

The Company believes that the estimates used paprg the financial statements are reasonableyaat
and reliable. Actual results could differ from thesstimates.

The going concern assumption

The Company’s business activities, together with fhctors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position, are reflected in the reu@utlook and Business Review section of the Dimst
report on pages 1 to 8. In addition, the notediéofinancial statements include the Company’s dhjes,
policies and processes for managing its capitalfitancial risk management objectives; detailstef
financial instruments; and its exposures to creslitand liquidity risk.

As set out in the Directors’ report, retaining seiéfnt liquidity and capital to withstand markeepsures
remains central to the Morgan Stanley Group’s &eddompany’s strategy.

Taking the above factors into consideration, thee€iors believe it is reasonable to assume that the
Company will have access to adequate resourcesriiinae in operational existence for the foresemabl
future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt thengpconcern basis in preparing the annual repodt an
financial statements.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements are mnegsand presented in Euros, the currency of timeapy
economic environment in which the Company operates.

All currency amounts in the financial statementd Bxirectors’ report are rounded to the nearestshod
Euros.

b. Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities denominateaunrencies other than Euros are translated into£at
the rates ruling at the reporting date. Transastimd non-monetary assets and liabilities denoewit
currencies other than Euros are recorded at ths pevailing at the dates of the transactionse arhount

of change in the fair value of financial liabilisiedesignated at fair value through profit or ldsat tis
attributable to changes in the credit risk of thikegilities (“DVA”) includes foreign exchange défences
thereon. All other translation differences are taklerough the income statement. Exchange difference
recognised in the income statement are present@ther income’ or ‘Other expense’, except wherésdo

in 3(c) below.

c. Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets int ftillowing categories on initial recognition: fimgal
assets classified as held for trading, financiabtsdesignated at fair value through profit os lasd loans
and receivables.

The Company classifies its financial liabilitieddrthe following categories on initial recognitidimancial
liabilities classified as held for trading; finaatiiabilities designated at fair value through fiiror loss
and financial liabilities at amortised cost.

More information regarding these classificationsiduded below:

i) Financial instruments classified as held for traing

Financial instruments classified as held for trgdimcluding all derivatives, are initially recodien
trade date at fair value (see note 3(d) below)l sf@ibsequent changes in fair value, foreign exchang
differences, interest and dividends are reflectedhe income statement in ‘Net gains on financial
instruments classified as held for trading’.

Transaction costs are excluded from the initial f@lue measurement of the financial instrumertiese
costs are recognised in the income statement imeGixpense’.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
C. Financial instruments (continued)
i) Financial instruments designated at fair valuethrough profit or loss

The Company has designated certain financial imgnis at fair value through profit or loss when the
financial instruments are managed, evaluated goarted internally on a fair value basis.

From the date the transaction in a financial imant designated at fair value through profit oslis
entered into (trade date) until settlement date,Gbmpany recognises any unrealised fair valueggsn
in the contract in the income statement other tA&# on financial liabilities designated at fair vl
through profit or loss which is recognised in tBebt valuation adjustment reserve’ where those gasin
do not create or enlarge an accounting mismatahse@tlement date, the fair value of consideratjiwen
or received is recognised as a financial instrundestgnated at fair value through profit or los=e(sote
3(d) below).

All subsequent changes in fair value, foreign ergeadifferences, interest and dividends are redftbat

the income statement in ‘Net losses on financiatriments designated at fair value through prafit o
loss’, other than DVA on financial liabilities atif value through profit or loss which is recoguise the
‘Debt valuation adjustment reserve’ where thosengka do not create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch.

DVA presented within other comprehensive incomendé subject to reclassification to the income
statement, but is transferred to retained earnitgm realised.

Transaction costs are excluded from the initial f@lue measurement of the financial instrumentiesge
costs are recognised in the income statement imeGixpense’.

iii) Loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets classified as loans and receiwavkerecognised when the Company becomes a party t
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Tlag initially measured at fair value (see note 3(d)
below) and subsequently measured at amortisedesssallowance for impairment. Interest is recegdi

in the income statement in ‘Interest income’, udting effective interest rate method as describéahbe
Transaction costs that are directly attributablegh® acquisition of the financial asset are addedrt
deducted from the fair value on initial recognitidmpairment losses and reversals of impairmergdss
on financial assets classified as loans and rebkigaare recognised in the income statement ineOth
expense’.

Financial assets classified as loans and receisahddude cash and short-term deposits, tradevaiskeis
and other receivables.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are recegdi when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. They iaiBally measured at fair value (see note 3(d)obél

and subsequently measured at amortised cost.e$ttisr recognised in the income statement in ‘&#ter
expense’ using the effective interest rate mettodescribed below. Transaction costs that arettjire
attributable to the issue of the financial lialildre added to or deducted from the fair value rotial
recognition.

The CPECs issued by the Company are classifiethasdial liabilities at amortised cost in accordanc
with the substance of the contractual arrangemedtlAS 32 ‘Financial instruments: Presentation —
offsetting financial instrumentsThe yield on the CPECs is recognised in the ire®statement in
‘Interest expense’ using the effective interest raethod as described below.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
C. Financial instruments (continued)
iii) Loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost (continued)

The effective interest rate method is a methodatduwtating the amortised cost of a financial insteunt
(or a group of financial instruments) and of alliicg the interest income or interest expense oker t
expected life of the financial instrument. Theeeffve interest rate is the rate that exactly dist® the
estimated future cash payments and receipts thrtheghexpected life of the financial instrument (or,
where appropriate a shorter period) to the carrgngunt of the financial instrument. The effective
interest rate is established on initial recognitiminthe financial instrument. The calculation biet
effective interest rate includes all fees and cossions paid or received, transaction costs, arabdigs

or premiums that are an integral part of the eiffecinterest rate. Transaction costs are increat@uists
that are directly attributable to the acquisitimsue or disposal of a financial instrument.

d. Fair value
Fair value measurement

Fair value is defined as the price that would lxeirged to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglfi.e. the
“exit price”) in an orderly transaction between ketrparticipants at the measurement date.

Fair value is a market-based measure consideradtfie perspective of a market participant rathantan
entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when ntaakeumptions are not readily available, assumsgtion
are set to reflect those that the Company belienasket participants would use in pricing the asmet
liability at the measurement date.

Where the Company manages a group of financiatsassel financial liabilities on the basis of itst ne
exposure to either market risks or credit risk, @@mpany measures the fair value of that group of
financial instruments consistently with how marketrticipants would price the net risk exposurehat t
measurement date.

In determining fair value, the Company uses varigalsiation approaches and establishes a hieramrhy f
inputs used in measuring fair value that maximteesuse of relevant observable inputs and minintises
use of unobservable inputs by requiring that thestmobservable inputs be used when available.
Observable inputs are inputs that market particgpaould use in pricing the asset or liability thetre
developed based on market data obtained from seimdependent of the Company. Unobservable inputs
are inputs that reflect assumptions the Compang\es other market participants would use in pgdime
asset or liability, that are developed based orb#st information available in the circumstances.

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels basethe observability of inputs as follows, witevel 1
being the highest and Level 3 being the lowestlieve
» Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an actieeket for identical assets or liabilities

Valuations based on quoted prices in active mattketisthe Morgan Stanley Group has the ability
to access for identical assets or liabilities. v&tion adjustments and block discounts are not
applied to Level 1 instruments. Since valuatiores lzased on quoted prices that are readily and
regularly available in an active market, valuatmnthese products does not entail a significant
degree of judgement.

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques using observableitisp

Valuations based on one or more quoted prices irketg that are not active or for which all
significant inputs are observable, either direotlyndirectly.

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques with significant bservable inputs

Valuations based on inputs that are unobservabte sagnificant to the overall fair value
measurement.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
d. Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

The availability of observable inputs can vary frpneduct to product and is affected by a wide \graf
factors, including, for example, the type of progwehether the product is new and not yet estadtish

the marketplace, the liquidity of markets and ottlesiracteristics particular to the product. To éhleent
that valuation is based on models or inputs thatlass observable or unobservable in the market, th
determination of fair value requires more judgeméwmcordingly, the degree of judgement exercised by
the Company in determining fair value is greatestifistruments categorised in Level 3 of the failue
hierarchy.

The Company considers prices and inputs that anemuas of the measurement date, including during
periods of market dislocation. In periods of mardislocation, the observability of prices and itgpmay

be reduced for many instruments. This conditiond@ause an instrument to be reclassified from Léve
to Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fa@lue hierarchy.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure &uevmay fall into different levels of the fair val
hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purpdbeslevel in the fair value hierarchy within whithe fair
value measurement falls in its entirety is deteadibased on the lowest level input that is sigaifido the
fair value measurement in its entirety.

The Company incorporates Funding Valuation Adjustm@FVA”) in the fair value measurements of
over-the-counter (“OTC”) uncollateralised or pditiacollateralised derivatives, and in collateratis
derivatives where the terms of the agreement d@eiohit the re-use of the collateral received géneral,
the FVA reflects a market funding risk premium ird@ in the noted derivative instruments. The
methodology for measuring FVA leverages the Comjzaeyisting credit-related valuation adjustment
calculation methodologies, which apply to both &saed liabilities.

For assets and liabilities that are transferredien levels in the fair value hierarchy during plegiod, fair
values are ascribed as if the assets or liabilitaetbeen transferred as of the beginning of thiege

Valuation techniques

Many cash instruments and OTC derivative contrhatse bid and ask prices that can be observed in the
marketplace. Bid prices reflect the highest pricat ta party is willing to pay for an asset. Askces
represent the lowest price that a party is williagaccept for an asset. The Company carries positat

the point within the bid-ask range that meets éstlestimate of fair value. For offsetting posigan the
same financial instrument, the same price withim bbid-ask spread is used to measure both the lodg a
short positions.

Fair value for many cash instruments and OTC dgeveacontracts is derived using pricing models.
Pricing models take into account the contract teassvell as multiple inputs including, where apalile,
commodity prices, equity prices, interest rate djielirves, credit curves, correlation, creditworgisis of
the counterparty, creditworthiness of the Compapyion volatility and currency rates.

Where appropriate, valuation adjustments are madectount for various factors such as liquidityris
(bid-ask adjustments), credit quality, model urmiaty and concentration risk.

Adjustments for liquidity risk adjust model-derivexid-market levels of Level 2 and Level 3 financial
instruments for the bid-mid or mid-ask spread regplito properly reflect the exit price of a risksfimn.
Bid-mid and mid-ask spreads are marked to leveleded in trade activity, broker quotes or other
external third-party data. Where these spreadsuaobservable for the particular position in quasti
spreads are derived from observable levels of aimpibsitions.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
d. Fair value (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

The Company applies credit-related valuation adjesits to its borrowings (primarily Structured Notes
which are designated at fair value through profitass and to OTC derivatives. The Company consider
the impact of changes in own credit spreads baged abservations of the secondary bond market dprea
when measuring the fair value for borrowings. FarGderivatives, the impact of changes in both the
Company’s and the counterparty’s credit ratingdasidered when measuring fair value. In deternginin
the expected exposure the Company simulates thrébdison of the future exposure to a counterpatitgn
applies market-based default probabilities to theire exposure, leveraging external third-partyditre
default swap (“CDS”) spread data. Where CDS sprstd are unavailable for a specific counterparty,
bond market spreads, CDS spread data based omunéerparty’s credit rating or CDS spread data that
reference a comparable counterparty may be utili$é@ Company also considers collateral held and
legally enforceable master netting agreementsnifitigate its exposure to each counterparty.

Adjustments for model uncertainty are taken for ifimss whose underlying models are reliant on
significant inputs that are neither directly nodinectly observable, hence requiring reliance datdished
theoretical concepts in their derivation. Thesgustthents are derived by making assessments of the
possible degree of variability using statisticahay@aches and market-based information where pessibl

The Company may apply a concentration adjustmenettain of its OTC derivatives portfolios to refle
the additional cost of closing out a particuladyde risk exposure. Where possible, these adjustnagze
based on observable market information but in mastances significant judgement is required tonesste
the costs of closing out concentrated risk expasdee to the lack of liquidity in the marketplace.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
d. Fair value (continued)

Valuation process

The Valuation Review Group (“VRG”) within the Fingial Control Group (“FCG”) is responsible for the
Company’s fair value valuation policies, procesard procedures. VRG is independent of the business
units and reports to the Chief Financial Officertbé Morgan Stanley Group (“CFQ”), who has final
authority over the valuation of the Company’s figah instruments. VRG implements valuation control
processes designed to validate the fair valueefdbmpany’s financial instruments measured atviaine
including those derived from pricing models.

Model ReviewVRG, in conjunction with the Model Risk Managem®&upartment (“MRM”"),
which reports to the Chief Risk Officer of the MargStanley Group (“CRQO”), independently
reviews valuation models’ theoretical soundness #ppropriateness of the valuation
methodology and calibration techniques developedth®y business units using observable
inputs. Where inputs are not observable, VRG resi¢he appropriateness of the proposed
valuation methodology to determine that it is cetesit with how a market participant would
arrive at the unobservable input. The valuation hométlogies utilised in the absence of
observable inputs may include extrapolation teahesgand the use of comparable observable
inputs. As part of the review, VRG develops a mdtiogy to independently verify the fair
value generated by the business unit's valuatiordaiso The Company generally subjects
valuations and models to a review process initiatig on a periodic basis thereafter.

Independent Price VerificatioThe business units are responsible for determitiiadair value

of financial instruments using approved valuatiorodels and valuation methodologies.
Generally on a monthly basi§/RG independently validates the fair values of ficial
instruments determined using valuation models ligrd@ning the appropriateness of the inputs
used by the business units and by testing commiawith the documented valuation
methodologies approved in the model review prodessribed above.

The results of this independent price verificationd any adjustments made by VRG to the fair
value generated by the business units are pres¢atedanagement of the Morgan Stanley
Group’s three business segments (i.e. InstitutioBekurities, Wealth Management and
Investment Management), the CFO and the CRO ogwaebasis.

VRG uses recently executed transactions, othemadisie market data such as exchange data,
broker/ dealer quotes, third-party pricing vendamd aggregation services for validating the fair
values of financial instruments generated usingiatadn models. VRG assesses the external
sources and their valuation methodologies to deternif the external providers meet the
minimum standards expected of a third-party prigogrce. Pricing data provided by approved
external sources are evaluated using a numberpsbaphes; for example, by corroborating the
external sources’ prices to executed trades, blysing the methodology and assumptions used
by the external source to generate a price andiyoevaluating how active the third-party
pricing source (or originating sources used bytthed-party pricing source) is in the market.
Based on this analysis, VRG generates a rankinthefobservable market data designed to
ensure that the highest-ranked market data sosrcsead to validate the business unit's fair
value of financial instruments.

VRG reviews the models and valuation methodologgdu® price new material Level 2 and
Level 3 transactions and both FCG and MRM must @ppthe fair value of the trade that is
initially recognised.

Level 3 TransactionsVRG reviews the business unit's valuation teche&jto assess whether
these are consistent with market participant astiong
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
d. Fair value (continued)

Gains and losses on inception

In the normal course of business, the fair valueadfnancial instrument on initial recognition iset
transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the cdesation given or received). In certain circumsemc
however, the fair value will be based on other okmale current market transactions in the same
instrument, without modification or repackaging,aor a valuation technique whose variables includg o
data from observable markets. When such evidenctsexhe Company recognises a gain or loss on
inception of the transaction.

When the use of unobservable market data has dfiségnt impact on determining fair value at the
inception of the transaction, the entire initiairgar loss indicated by the valuation techniqueatishe
transaction date is not recognised immediateljhéihcome statement and is recognised instead tieen
market data becomes observable.

e. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilitie

The Company derecognises a financial asset wheoahiactual rights to the cash flows from the tsse
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset substantially all the risk and rewards of owngrsif the
asset.

If the asset has been transferred, and the ergithiar transfers nor retains substantially alltaf tisks and
rewards of the asset, then the entity determinestiveh it has retained control of the asset.

If the entity has retained control of the asseshill continue to recognise the financial assehéoextent
of its continuing involvement in the financial assdf the entity has not retained control of treset, it
derecognises the asset and separately recognigeiglais or obligation created or retained in tansfer.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities witga Company’s obligations are discharged, cargtelle
or they expire.

f. Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, an assessment is madevalsetiher there is any objective evidence of impairm
in the value of a financial asset classified asidoand receivables. Impairment losses are recegjifign
event has occurred which will have an adverse itpacthe expected future cash flows of an assettand
expected impact can be reliably estimated.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables areurezhss the difference between the carrying amofint
the loans and receivables and the present valestohated cash flows discounted at the asset’snatig
effective interest rate. Such impairment losses ramognised in the income statement within ‘Other
expense’ and are recognised against the carryirmgianof the impaired asset on the statement ohfiz
position. Interest on the impaired asset contirtodse accrued on the reduced carrying amount based
the original effective interest rate of the asset.

If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estihatgairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, gteviously recognised impairment loss is reversed a
described for the relevant categories of finanasaet in note 3(c) (iii). Any reversal is limitemthe extent

that the value of the asset may not exceed thenatigmortised cost of the asset had no impairment
occurred.

g. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and dedepubits with banks, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts, along with highly liquid investmentsittworiginal maturities of three months or lessttare
readily convertible to known amounts of cash artgjestt to insignificant risk of change in value.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
h. Income tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the taxntiyrmayable.

The tax currently payable is calculated based ralie profit for the year. Taxable profit may diffeom
profit before income tax as reported in the incostetement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in othersyaad it further excludes items that are nevealibexor
deductible. The Company’s liability for current tesxcalculated using tax rates that have been etaut
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Ctrtax is charged or credited in the income statémen
except when it relates to items charged or crediiegbtly to other comprehensive income, in whielse

the current tax is also recorded within other caghpnsive income.

Current tax assets are offset against currentiabiities when there is a legally enforceable titghset off
current tax assets against current tax liabilitind the Company intends to settle its current smets and
current tax liabilities on a net basis or to reatise asset and settle the liability simultaneausly

i. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liailities

Where there is a currently legally enforceable trighset off the recognised amounts and an intarttio
either settle on a net basis or to realise thetams# the liability simultaneously, financial asseind
financial liabilities are offset and the net amoimpresented on the statement of financial pasitim the
absence of such conditions, financial assets awaghdial liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

4, INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ represkntal interest income and total interest expenge fo
financial assets and financial liabilities that acg carried at fair value.

‘Interest expense’ includes the yield payable olEC® (see note 8).

No other gains or losses have been recognisedgjpece of loans and receivables other than as disdlas
‘Interest income’ and foreign exchange differendisslosed in ‘Other expense’ (note 6).

No other gains or losses have been recognisedpecet of financial liabilities at amortised coshet than
as disclosed as ‘Interest expense’ and foreignangdh differences disclosed in ‘Other expense’ (6pte

5. OTHER INCOME

2017 2016
€'000 €'000
Management charges to other Morgan Stanley Grodprtakings 1,304 5,916
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6. OTHER EXPENSE

2017 2016
€'000 €'000
Auditors’ remuneration:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its &ssdor the 99 101
audit of the Company’s financial statements
Bank charges 66 15
Net foreign exchange losses 3,303 283
Management charges from other Morgan Stanley Guowalertakings 3,104 -
Other 4 2
6,576 401

Audit fees of €99,000 (2016: €101,000) were paidaoitte Accountants B.V. and related to Deloitte
member firms for audit services.

The Company employed no staff during the year (20b6e).

The Company actively manages its foreign currengyosure risk arising on its assets and liabilifies
currencies other than Euro. Net foreign exchangeds include translation differences that havearitie

to foreign exchange exposure created as a restiledding assets and liabilities recognised for Marg
Stanley Group reporting purposes.

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2017 2016
€000 €000
Current tax expense
Current year 515 1,290
Adjustment in respect of prior years (2) (6)
Income tax expense 513 1,284
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7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The current year income tax expense is lower tl2@1q: lower than) that resulting from applying the
average standard rate of corporation tax in théendt&nds for the year of 25% (2016: 25%). The main

differences are explained below:

2017 2016

€'000 €'000

Profit before income tax 2,060 5,160
Income tax using the average standard rate of catipa tax

in Netherlands of 25% (2016: 25%) 515 1,290

Impact on tax of:
Tax over provided in prior years (2) (6)
Total income tax expense in the income statement 513 1,284

The Company is included in a fiscal unity with Aiiedes Investments Codperatieve U.A. and is not a
stand-alone taxpayer for Dutch corporate incomepasposes. If, and to the extent that, the Company
would benefit from losses of other members of tiseal unity, these may be settled via inter-company

mechanisms.

In addition to the amount charged to the incomeesiant, the aggregate amount of current tax rejdgdn
each component of other comprehensive income whdlaw's:

2017 2016
Before Tax Before Tax
tax benefit Net of tax tax benefit Net of tax

€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000

Changes in fair value of liabiliti¢
designated at fair value throu
profit or loss due to changes in-

Company's own credit risk - - - (4,440) 1,110 (3,330)
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8. CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED EQUITY CERTIFICATES

On 30 March 2012, the Company issued 11,252 818RECs of €100 each, classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. The CPECs were idsieeone of the Company's shareholders, Archimedes
Investments Codperatieve U.A. (a Morgan Stanleyu@nandertaking), in exchange for cash consideration
of €1,125,281,000.

The holder of the CPECs is entitled to receive mmual yield on a date agreed by the Company and the
holder. The yield for each CPEC is calculatedresiine deriving from the Company's activities ldws t
necessary amounts to cover the costs of the Contlisitled by the number of CPECs then in issue. Othe
income relating to management charges received @ttver Morgan Stanley Group undertakings and gains
or losses from financial instruments classifiechakl for trading or designated at fair value thiopgofit

or loss are excluded from the calculation.

An accrued vyield for the year ended 31 December7 26f1€4,490,000 (2016: €14,700,000) has been
recognised in the income statement in ‘Intereseagp’. The liability to the holders of the CPECshat
end of the financial year, recognised within ‘Otpayables’ is €51,391,000 (2016: €46,901,000).

Additional costs of €756,000 included within ‘Netréign exchange losses’ in ‘Other expense’ in D&62
financial statements are taken into account whdeculzding the annual yield payable to the holder of
CPECs for 2017.

The CPECs carry no voting rights. The Company dred holder have the right to convert each issued
CPEC into one ordinary share with a nominal valt€1®0.

At 31 December 2017, the maturity date of the CPRB@s 150 years from the date of issuance. The
CPECs may be redeemed earlier at the option cEtmpany or on liquidation of the Company.

The CPECs rank ahead of the ordinary shares iawéet of liquidation.
On 27 February 2018, the maturity date of the CPE&samended to 49 years from the date of issuance.

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES CLASS IFIED AS HELD FOR
TRADING

Financial assets and financial liabilities clagsifas held for trading are summarised as follows:

2017 2016
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Derivatives 592,979 319,651 590,179 514,302
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10. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESI GNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial instruments designated at fair value ublo profit or loss consist primarily of the followg
financial assets and financial liabilities:

Issued Structured Note3hese relate to financial liabilities which ariserh selling structured products
generally in the form of notes, certificates andramts. These instruments contain an embeddedatigg
which significantly modifies the cash flows of tlesuance. The return on the instrument is linkedrto
underlying that is not clearly and closely relatedhe debt host including, but not limited to dgtiinked
notes. These Structured Notes are designatedratafiaie through profit or loss as the risks to \hibe
Company is a contractual party are risk managea ¢eir value basis as part of the Company’s trading
portfolio and the risk is reported to key managenpemsonnel on this basis.

Prepaid equity securities contractsThese contracts involve derivatives for which aitidl payment is
paid at inception. The contracts, along with thenkdesignated at fair value through profit or kmsd the
derivative contracts classified as held for tradieug part of the hedging strategy for the obl@adiarising
pursuant to the issuance of the Structured Noths.prepaid equity securities contracts are desgnat
fair value through profit or loss as the risks thieh the Company is a contractual party are managea
fair value basis as part of the Company’s tradiongfplio and the risk is reported to key management
personnel on this basis.

Loans: These are loans to other Morgan Stanley Group teikdegs that, along with the prepaid equity
securities contracts and the derivatives contralassified as held for trading, are part of the died
strategy for the obligations arising pursuant te thsuance of the Structured Notes. These loans are
designated at fair value through profit or losshasrisks to which the Company is a contractuatypare
managed on a fair value basis as part of the Coyparading portfolio and the risk is reported teyk
management personnel on this basis.

2017 2016
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Issued Structured Notes - 7,340,601 - 7,352,026
Prepaid equity securities contracts 268,210 - 367,160 -
Loans 6,797,365 - 6,901,910 -

7,065,575 7,340,601 7,269,070 7,352,026

The Company determines the amount of changesrinvdhie attributable to changes in counterpartgitre
risk or own credit risk, as relating to loans assiuied Structured Notes, by first determining thevalue
including the impact of counterparty credit riskawn credit risk, and then deducting those chamnyésir
value representing managed market risk. In deténgifair value, the Company considers the impdct o
changes in own credit spreads based upon obsearsatib the secondary bond market spreads when
measuring the fair value for issued Structured Blot&he Company considers that this approach most
faithfully represents the amount of change in featue due to both counterparty credit risk and the
Company’s own credit risk.
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10. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESI GNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

At initial recognition of a specific Structured MNoissuance program, the Company'’s issuance prcaeds,
any planned hedging structure relating to the isseiaf those Structured Notes, has been considered,
determine whether the presentation of fair valuanges attributable to credit risk of those Striedur
Notes through other comprehensive income wouldtereaenlarge an accounting mismatch in the income
statement. If financial instruments, such as pepquity securities contracts, derivatives clasdifis held
for trading and loans measured at fair value, fbictv changes in fair value incorporating countepar
credit risk are reflected within the income statamare traded to economically hedge the Structiieid
issuances in full, the fair value incorporating @eyinterparty credit risk arising on the hedgingfrimments
may materially offset the fair value incorporatiagy DVA applied to Structured Notes, where the
counterparties of the hedging instruments aregfatte Morgan Stanley Group. In such cases, the DYA
those Structured Notes is not reflected within pttemprehensive income, and instead is presentéukin
income statement.

As of 1 January 2016, a cumulative gain, grosswof of €4,440,000 was recorded to move the cunvalati
net DVA gain from ‘Retained earnings’ to the ‘Delatluation adjustment reserve’. This cumulative net
DVA gain related to certain Structured Notes hedggdollateralised prepaid equity securities catas

at 1 January 2016. Due to the collateralised naifitbe prepaid equity securities contracts heddiiege
Structured Notes, no changes in fair value attablgt to counterparty credit risk have been receghis

From 1 January 2016 to derecognition of these &frad Notes hedged by collateralised prepaid equity
securities contracts, the DVA recognised throudteotomprehensive income was a loss, gross obfax,
€4,440,000. The cumulative DVA on these Structidetes was €nil, as such no realised gain or loss wa
transferred from the ‘Debt valuation adjustmeneres’ to ‘Retained earnings’.

All other DVA on Structured Notes are reflectedhe income statement.

The following table presents the change in faiueahnd the cumulative change recognised in theriaco
statement attributable to own credit risk for isb&ructured Notes and counterparty credit riskdans.

Cumulative gain or (loss)

Gain or (loss) recognised in . ; .
recognised in the income

the income statement?

statement
Year Year

ended 31 ended 31 31 31

Decembel Decembel Decembet December

2017 2016 2017 2016

€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Issued structured notes (35,593 (37,977) (107,997 (72,404)
Loans 34,794 38,776 107,997 73,203
(799) 799 - 799

(1) The net loss of €799,000 (31 December 2016gaat of €799,000) and an offsetting net gain otéld in the fair value of the
related prepaid equity securities contracts (31ebdser 2016: net loss of €799,000) are recogniséteincome statement.

The carrying amount of financial liabilities desiged at fair value for which all changes in faifueaare
presented through the income statement was €190@MQwer than the contractual amount due at ntgturi
(2016: €73,042,000 lower).
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10. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESI GNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The following tables present the carrying valuetted Company’s financial liabilities designated air f
value through the profit or loss account, clasditeecording to underlying security type, includismgle
name equities, equity indices and equity portfolio.

Single Equit Equit
31 December 2017 name Equity quity Other® Total
" indices  portfolio
equities
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Certificates and warrants 1,820,496 13,016 363,591 - 2,197,103
Notes 643,469 2,573,278 988,971 937,78 5,143,498

Total financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profitorloss 5 453 965 2586204 1352562 937,780 7,340,601

Single Equit Equit
31 December 2016 name =quity quity Other® Total
" indices  portfolio
equities
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Certificates and warrants 2,037,36: 20,864  362,86¢ - 2,421,09¢
Notes 780,602 2,783,85( 506,807 859,672 4,930,93:

Total financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss 2,817,96¢  2,804,71¢ 869,67¢ 859,67  7,352,02¢

@ Other includes Structured Notes that have coupomepayment terms linked to the performance of dsdaturities,
currencies or commodities.

The majority of the Company’s financial liabilitieesignated at fair value through profit or lossevinte
exposure to an underlying single name equity, antgdndex or portfolio of equities. The prepaidudy
securities contracts, derivative contracts clasgifas held for trading and loans that the Compantgre
into in order to hedge the Structured Notes areedlas detailed in note 3(d) and note 16(a), ané ha
similar valuation inputs to the liabilities theydue.

11. EQUITY
Ordinary share capital
Ordinary
shares of
€100 each
€'000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 31 Deceptldaf 15,018
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11. EQUITY (CONTINUED)

On 9 December 2013 the Articles of Associationlef Company were amended whereby the concept of
authorised share capital was abolished. Each sluafers the right to cast one vote, provided thject

to mandatory law, all resolutions of the Generakbliteg shall be adopted by unanimous vote in a mgeti

in which the entire share capital is present orasgnted.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled toivecdividends as declared from time to time.

Reserves

The Company uses the contracts that it purchases dther Morgan Stanley Group undertakings to hedge
the market price, interest rate, foreign curreneg ather market risks associated with the issuafcbe
Structured Notes, consistent with the Company’k nmnagement strategy. Both the contracts and the
Structured Note issuances are valued at fair viéldrgugh profit or loss and no net cumulative gaitiogs

is expected to be realised over the life of tharial instrument contracts. Therefore, a legahiation
reserve under Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil EGAW?2, article 390(1)) is not necessary.

Debt valuation adjustment reserve

The ‘Debt valuation adjustment reserve’ is €nil{80€nil). The DVA on Structured Notes is presented
the income statement as presenting in other corapede income would create an accounting mismatch
(see note 10).

Appropriation of the net result for the year

The statement of financial position is presentdadrahe proposed appropriation of net result fer year
ended 31 December 2017. The Directors proposeddhadprofit to retained earnings as part of theitgq
shareholders’ funds.
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12. EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets ahitlities analysed according to when they are exqubtd
be recovered, realised or settled.

At 31 December 2017 Less than
or equal to More than
twelve twelve
months months Total
€'000 €'000 €'000
ASSETS
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 432 - 432
Trade receivables 25,724 - 25,724
Other receivables 1,792,304 - 1,792,304
1,818,460 - 1,818,460
Financial assets classified as held for trading , B2 260,083 592,979
Financial assets designated at fair value througfitfor loss 2,963,038 4,102,537 7,065,575
Current tax assets 4,811 - 4,811

5,119,205 4,362,620 9,481,825

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity certificates -1,125,281 1,125,281
Trade payables 600,127 - 600,127
Other payables 56,382 - 56,382
656,509 1,125,281 1,781,790
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin 204,265 115,386 319,651

Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgh profit or loss 3,093,367 4,247,234 7,340,601
3,954,141 5,487,901 9,442,042
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12. EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CO NTINUED)

At 31 December 2016 Less than
or equal to More than
twelve twelve
months months Total
€'000 €'000 €'000
ASSETS
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 716 - 716
Trade receivables 58,482 - 58,482
Other receivables 523,143 1,125,281 1,648,424

582,341 1,125,281 1,707,622

Financial assets classified as held for trading &% 383,504 590,179
Financial assets designated at fair value througfitfor loss 2,569,893 4,699,177 7,269,070
Current tax assets 2,212 - 2,212

3,361,121 6,207,962 9,569,083

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity certificates -1,125,281 1,125,281
Trade payables 480,022 - 480,022
Other payables 59,216 - 59,216
539,238 1,125,281 1,664,519
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin 285,325 228,977 514,302

Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgb profit or loss 2,498,322 4,853,704 7,352,026
3,322,885 6,207,962 9,530,847

13. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect ofGbepany’s business and geographical segments. The
business segments and geographical segments aed basthe Company’s management and internal
reporting structure.

Business segments

Morgan Stanley structures its business segmentsapty based upon the nature of the financial pobsiu
and services provided to customers and Morgan Staninternal management structure. The Company’s
own business segments are consistent with thosafan Stanley.

The Company has one reportable business segmestitutional Securities, which provides financial
services to financial institutions. Its businesdudes the issuance of financial instruments aachéitging
of the obligations arising pursuant to such isseanc
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

The Company operates in three geographic regiolistes below:
e Europe, Middle East and Africa (“EMEA")

* Americas

* Asia

The following table presents selected income statérand statement of financial position informatafn
the Company’s operations by geographic area. kherraal revenues (net of interest expense) and tota
assets disclosed in the following table reflectréngional view of the Company’s operations, on aaggd
basis. The basis for attributing external rever{ues of interest expense) and total assets ismdated by
trading desk location.

EMEA Americas Asia Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000

External

revenues
net of interest 8,353 4,466 142 384 141 711 8,636 5,561

Profit

before
income tax 1,777 4,065 142 384 141 711 2,060 5,160

Total assets 6,184,76%,495,700 2,134,732 1,778,658 1,162,326 1,294,725 9,481,825 9,569,083

Of the Company’'s external revenue, 100% (2016: Do@fises from transactions with other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings. Further details ofhstransactions are disclosed in the related party
disclosures note 19.

14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management procedures

Risk is an inherent part of the Company’s busireswity. The Company seeks to identify, assess)itan

and manage each of the various types of risk iraiwn its business activities in accordance witfingel
policies and procedures. The Company has develipedvn risk management policy framework, which
is consistent with and leverages the risk managéepuwities and procedures of the Morgan Stanleyu@ro
and which include escalation to the Company’s BadrBirectors and to appropriate senior management
personnel.

Significant risks faced by the Company resultirapfrits trading activities are set out below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising wharborrower, counterparty or issuer does not niset i
financial obligations to the Company. The Compammarily incurs credit risk to institutions and
sophisticated investors through its Institutionat &ities business segment.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

The Company’s credit risk management policies amatgdures establish the framework for identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling credit riskilst ensuring transparency of material credit sjsk
ensuring compliance with established limits andaksing risk concentrations to appropriate senior
management.

The Company enters into the majority of its finah@sset transactions with other Morgan Stanleyuro
undertakingsand both the Company and the other Morgan Sta@Bleyp undertakings are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the same ultimate parent entityrddo Stanley. As a result of the implicit suppibwdt
would be provided by Morgan Stanley, the Compangoissidered exposed to the credit risk of Morgan
Stanley, except where the Company transacts witrdflorgan Stanley Group undertakings that have a
higher credit rating to that of Morgan Stanley.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Company has entered into collateral arrangesneith other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings.
Collateral held is managed in accordance with theddn Stanley Group’s guidelines and the relevant
underlying agreements.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Companthe reporting date is the carrying amount of the
financial assets held in the statement of finangakition. Where the Company enters into credit
enhancements to manage the credit exposure onfthaeeial instruments, the financial effect of dredit
enhancements is also disclosed below. The nettoeggbsure represents the credit exposure remaining
after the effect of the credit enhancements.

The Company does not have any significant expostseng from items not recognised on its statenoént
financial position.

Exposure to credit risk by class

Class 2017 2016
Gross Net Gross Net
credit credit credit credit
exposure Credit exposure  exposure Credit exposure
@ enhancements @ @ enhancements @
€'000 €000 €000 €'000 €000 €'000
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 432 - 432 716 - 716
Trade receivables 25,724 - 25,724 58,482 - 58,482
Other receivables 1,792,304 - 1,792,304 1,648,424 - 1,648,424

Financial assets classified as
held for trading:

Derivatives 592,979 (565,399) 27,580 590,179 (499,624) 90,555

Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Prepaid equity securities contracts 268,210 (268,210) - 367,160 (344,760) 22,400
Loans 6,797,365 - 6,797,365 6,901,910 - 6,901,910
9,477,014 (833,609) 8,643,405 9,566,871 (844,384) 8,722,487

(1) The carrying amount recognised in the stateroEfibancial position best represents the Comgamgximum exposure to credit risk.

(2) Of the residual net credit exposure, intercomypaross product netting arrangements are in pldeh would allow for an additional
€nil (2016: €80,841,000) to be offset in the evardefault by certain Morgan Stanley counterparties
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

The impact of master netting arrangements and ainaigreements on the Company’s ability to offset
financial assets and financial liabilities is des#d in note 15.

Maximum exposure to credit risk by credit ratihg
Gross credit exposure

Credit rating 2017 2016
€'000 €'000

External financial institutions

AA - 185

A 432 531

Other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings

A 8,921,688 7,907,134
BBB 554,894 1,659,021
Total 9,477,014 9,566,871

(1) Internal credit rating derived using methodasggenerally consistent with those used by extemencies

At 31 December 2017 there were no financial agsast due but not impaired or individually impaired
(2016: €nil).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity refers to the risk that the Company wi# unable to finance its operations due to a lbsE@ess
to the capital markets or difficulty in liquidatinigs assets. Liquidity risk encompasses the rigi the
Company’s ability (or perceived ability) to meeg financial obligations without experiencing sigeaft
business disruption or reputational damage that tinagaten the Company’s viability as a going concer
Liquidity risk also encompasses the associatedifigndsks triggered by the market or idiosyncraicess
events that may cause unexpected changes in fundids or an inability to raise new funding. Gelhgra
the Company incurs liquidity risk as a result of trading, lending, investing and client faciliati
activities.

The Morgan Stanley Group’s Liquidity Risk ManagemEramework is critical to helping ensure that the
Company maintains sufficient liquidity reserves ahdable funding sources to meet its daily obligyadi
and to withstand unanticipated stress events. Tihaidity Risk Department is a distinct area in Risk
Management, which oversees and monitors liquidigk.r The Liquidity Risk Department ensures
transparency of material liquidity risks, complianwith established risk limits and escalation akri
concentrations to appropriate senior managementexezute these responsibilities, the Liquidity Risk
Department:

» Establishes limits in line with the Morgan Stan@goup’s risk appetite;
» ldentifies and analyses emerging liquidity risk®tsure such risks are appropriately mitigated;
* Monitors and reports risk exposures against metmcklimits, and;

» Reviews the methodologies and assumptions undéngirine Morgan Stanley Group’s Liquidity
Stress Tests to ensure sufficient liquidity anddfag under a range of adverse scenarios.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The liquidity risks identified by these processes summarised in reports produced by the LiquiBityk
Department that are circulated to and discussed seihior management, as appropriate.

The Treasury Department and applicable businests urdave primary responsibility for evaluating,
monitoring and controlling the liquidity risks arg from the Morgan Stanley Group’s business atitisj

and for maintaining processes and controls to maulag key risks inherent in their respective aréas
Liquidity Risk Department coordinates with the Tgery Department and these business units to help
ensure a consistent and comprehensive frameworkn&aging liquidity risk across the Morgan Stanley
Group.

The Company'’s liquidity risk management policies gnocedures are consistent with those of the Morga
Stanley Group.

The primary goal of the Company’s liquidity risk nagement framework is to ensure that the Company
has access to adequate funding across a wide maihgearket conditions and time horizons. The
framework is designed to enable the Company td ftdffinancial obligations and support the exéontof

its business strategies.

The following principles guide the Company’s ligitydrisk management framework:

« Sufficient liquid assets should be maintained t@ecamaturing liabilities and other planned and
contingent outflows;

* Maturity profile of assets and liabilities shoule kligned, with limited reliance on short-term
funding;

e Source, counterparty, currency, region, and terfumding should be diversified; and
» Liquidity Stress Tests should anticipate, and antdar, periods of limited access to funding.

The Company hedges all of its financial liabilitiegth financial assets entered into with other Maorg
Stanley Group undertakings, where both the Compantlyother Morgan Stanley Group undertakings are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the same parent, Mor@anley. Further, the maturity profile of the
financial assets matches the maturity profile effihancial liabilities.

The core components of the Morgan Stanley Grougisdity management framework, which includes
consideration of the liquidity risk for each indival legal entity, are the Required Liquidity Framoek,
Liquidity Stress Tests and the Global Liquidity Be&, which support the Morgan Stanley Group’sdtrg
liquidity profile.

Required Liquidity Framework

The Required Liquidity Framework establishes theoamh of liquidity the Company must hold in both
normal and stressed environments to ensure thdinasicial condition and overall soundness is not
adversely affected by an inability (or perceivedbitity) to meet its financial obligations in a &y
manner. The Required Liquidity Framework consid#rs most constraining liquidity requirement to
satisfy all regulatory and internal limits at a Man Stanley Group and legal entity level.

Liquidity Stress Tests

The Morgan Stanley Group uses Liquidity Stress S é&stmodel external and intercompany flows across
multiple scenarios and a range of time horizonshesg scenarios contain various combinations of
idiosyncratic and systemic stress events of differseverity and duration. The methodology,
implementation, production and analysis of the Canys Liquidity Stress Tests are important
components of the Required Liquidity Framework.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

The Liquidity Stress Tests are produced for Mor§tamley and its major operating subsidiaries, dsage

at major currency levels, to capture specific gasjuirements and cash availability at various |eggities.
The Liquidity Stress Tests assume that subsidianwids use their own liquidity first to fund their
obligations before drawing liquidity from MorganaBtey. It is also assumed that Morgan Stanley will
support its subsidiaries and will not have accessash that may be held at certain subsidiariesaddtlition

to the assumptions underpinning the Liquidity Stréests, Morgan Stanley Group takes into consierat
the settlement risk related to intra-day settlenawat clearing of securities and financial actigtie

Since the Company hedges the liquidity risk offittgncial liabilities with financial assets that tola the
maturity profile of the financial liabilities, th€ompany is not considered a major operating suosidor
the purposes of liquidity risk. However, the Compavould have access to the cash or liquidity neser
held by Morgan Stanley in the unlikely event thatas unable to access adequate financing to seitgic
financial liabilities when they become payable.

The Required Liquidity Framework and Liquidity StseTests are evaluated on an ongoing basis and
reported to the Firm Risk Committee, Asset/ LidbiManagement Committee, and other appropriate risk
committees.

Global Liquidity Reserve

The Morgan Stanley Group maintains sufficient ldjtyi reserves (“the Global Liquidity Reserve”) to
cover daily funding needs and to meet strategicidity targets sized by the Required Liquidity
Framework and Liquidity Stress Tests. The siz¢hefGlobal Liquidity Reserve is actively managed by
the Morgan Stanley Group considering the follow@ognponents: unsecured debt maturity profile; baanc
sheet size and composition; funding needs in @steenvironment inclusive of contingent cash owidt
and collateral requirements. In addition, the Morgtanley Group’s Global Liquidity Reserve inclsige
discretionary surplus based on the Morgan Stanlegugs risk tolerance and is subject to change
depending on market and firm-specific events.

The Morgan Stanley Group’s Global Liquidity Reserie@ which the Company has access, is held within
Morgan Stanley and its major operating subsidiagesl is composed of diversified cash and cash
equivalents and unencumbered highly liquid se@agiti

Eligible unencumbered highly liquid securities g US government securities, US agency securiigs,
agency mortgage-backed securities, non-US goverhseenrities and other highly liquid investmentdga
securities.

The ability to monetise assets during a liquiditigis is critical. The Morgan Stanley Group beéswthat
the assets held in its Global Liquidity Reserve banmonetised within five business days in a stekss
environment given the highly liquid and diversifiedture of the reserves.

Funding management

The Morgan Stanley Group manages its funding inaamar that reduces the risk of disruption to the
Morgan Stanley Group’s and the Company’s operatioftse Morgan Stanley Group pursues a strategy of
diversification of secured and unsecured fundingrees (by product, investor and region) and attertgpt
ensure that the tenor of the Morgan Stanley Grouisl the Company'’s, liabilities equals or excetbds
expected holding period of the assets being findnce

The Morgan Stanley Group funds its balance sheet ajiobal basis through diverse sources, which
includes consideration of the funding risk of edehal entity. These sources may include the Morgan
Stanley Group’s equity capital, long-term borrowirggcurities sold under agreements to repurchase
(“repurchase agreements”), securities lending, siégpdetters of credit and lines of credit. Themyan
Stanley Group has active financing programmes @th Istandard and structured products targetingaglob
investors and currencies.
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Liquidity risk (continued)
Balance sheet management

In managing both the Morgan Stanley Group’s anddbmpany’s funding risk the composition and size of
the entire balance sheet, not just financial liaed, is monitored and evaluated. A substant@atipn of
the Morgan Stanley Group’s total assets consistgoid marketable securities and short-term reaigies
arising principally from sales and trading actie#iin the Institutional Securities business. Tigeid
nature of these assets provides the Morgan Stasteyp and the Company with flexibility in managing
the composition and size of its balance sheet.

Maturity analysis

In the following maturity analysis of financial &s and financial liabilities, derivative contradisancial
assets designated at fair value through profibss bnd financial liabilities designated at failuesthrough
profit or loss are disclosed according to theiliestr contractual maturity; all such amounts arespnted

at their fair value, consistent with how these ficial instruments are managed. All other amounts
represent undiscounted cash flows receivable apahba by the Company arising from its financialedss
and financial liabilities to earliest contractuahturities as at 31 December 2017 and 31 Decemlds. 20
Receipts of financial assets and repayments ohdiiad liabilities that are subject to immediateicetare
treated as if notice were given immediately and eessified as on demand. This presentation is
considered by the Company to appropriately refleetliquidity risk arising from these financial assand
financial liabilities, presented in a way that iBnsistent with how the liquidity risk on these fiéal
assets and financial liabilities is managed byGbenpany.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Equal to Equal to
or more or more
than 1 than 2
year years  Equal to
but less but less or more
On Less than than 2 than 5 than 5
demand 1 year years years years Total
31 December 2017 €'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €'000 €000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 432 - - - 432
Trade receivables 25,724 - - - - 25,724
Other receivables 1,792,304 - - - - 1,792,304
Financial assets classified as held for
trading:
Derivatives 318,742 67,235 53,895 89,405 63,702 592,979
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts 42,688 113,034 - 112,488 - 268,210
Loans 1,853,180 1,171,057 554,268 1,748,583 12770, 6,797,365
Total financial assets 4,033,070 1,351,326 608,163 1,950,476 1,533,979 779044
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity
certificates 1,125,281 - - - - 1,125,281
Trade payables 600,127 - - - - 600,127
Other payables 56,382 - - - - 56,382
Financial liabilities classified as held
for trading:
Derivatives 169,944 37,513 12,506 39,951 59,737 9,651
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Issued Structured Notes 2,046,364 1,313,813 595,68,910,525 1,474,242 7,340,601
Total financial liabilities 3,998,098 1,351,326 608,163 1,950,476 1,533,979 42M42
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Equal to
or more Equal to
than one or more
year than two Equal to
but less years but or more
On Less than than two less than than five
demand one year years five years years Total
31 December 2016 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 716 - - - - 716
Trade receivables 58,482 - - - - 58,482
Other receivables 1,648,424 - - - - 1,648,424
Financial assets classified as held for
trading:
Derivatives 349,470 28,366 33,811 125,652 52,880 590,179
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts 228,062 47,124 91,974 - - 367,160
Loans 2,172,686 1,036,855 732,811 1,834,298 1,125,260 6,901,910
Total financial assets 4,457,840 1,112,345 858,596 1,959,950 1,178,140 9,566,871
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity
certificates 1,125,281 - - - - 1,125,281
Trade payables 480,022 - - - - 480,022
Other payables 59,216 - - - - 59,216
Financial liabilities classified as held
for trading:
Derivatives 290,306 39,607 49,313 76,113 58,963 514,302
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Issued Structured Notes 2,466,991 1,072,738 809,283 1,883,837 1,119,177 7,352,026
Total financial liabilities 4,421,816 1,112,345 858,596 1,959,950 1,178,140 9,530,847

Market risk

Market risk is defined by IFRS Financial instruments — Disclosureas the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument willdtuate because of changes in market prices.

Sound market risk management is an integral patth@fCompany’s culture. The Company is responsible
for ensuring that market risk exposures are welidggd and monitored. The Company also ensures
transparency of material market risks, monitors glience with established limits, and escalates risk
concentrations to appropriate senior management.

To execute these responsibilities, the Morgan 8ta@roup monitors the market risk of the firm again
limits on aggregate risk exposures, performs aewaf risk analysedncluding monitoring Value-at-risk
(“VaR") and stress testing analyses, routinely repadsk summaries and maintains the VaR and sienar
analysis methodologies. The Company is managedniite Morgan Stanley Group’s global framework.
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Market risk (continued)

The market risk management policies and procedafretee Company include performing risk analyses and
reporting material risks identified to appropriaeior management of the Company.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined basedhe exposure to equity price risk at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 respectively.

The market risk related to such equity price riskneasured by estimating the potential reductictotal
comprehensive income associated with a 10% delitiee underlying equity price as shown in the ¢abl
below.

Impact on Total Comprehensive Income
Gains/(Losses)

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

€'000 €'000
Financial instruments classified as held for trgdin (707,239) (698,486)
Financial assets designated at fair value througfitr loss (26,821) (36,716)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgb profit or loss 734,060 735,202

The Company’s equity risk price risk is mainly centrated on equity securities in EMEA.

The Company enters into the majority of its finah@sset transactions with other Morgan Stanleyu@ro
undertakings, where both the Company and the di#temgan Stanley Group undertakings are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the same group parent eiitygan Stanley.

The issued Structured Notes expose the Comparhetagk of changes in market prices of the undeglyi
securities, interest rate risk and, where denormthat currencies other than Euros, the risk of gharn
rates of exchange between the Euro and the ottexare currencies. The Company uses the contriats t

it purchases from other Morgan Stanley Group uladé@rgs to hedge the market price, interest rate and
foreign currency risks associated with the issuarfdde Structured Notes, consistent with the Camgisa
risk management strategy. As such, the Compangti®€xposed to any net market risk on these findncia
instruments.

The net foreign exchange losses recognised in fOdlipense’ have arisen as a result of exposure to
hedging on assets and liabilities recognised forddn Stanley Group purposes, under the Morgan &tanl
Group’s local reporting requirements.

43



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SUBJ ECT TO OFFSETTING

In order to manage credit exposure arising fronbitsiness activities, the Company applies varioedit
risk management policies and procedures, see rbterifurther details. Primarily in connection it
derivative contracts, prepaid equity securitiestiamts and issued Structured Notes, the Compargrent
into master netting arrangements and collaterangements with its counterparties. These agreements
provide the Company with the right, in the ordinargurse of business and/ or in the event of a
counterparty default (such as bankruptcy or a @paftty’s failure to pay or perform), to net a
counterparty’s rights and obligations under suafe@gent and, in the event of counterparty defaattpff
collateral held by the Company against the net atnowed by the counterparty. However, in certain
circumstances, the Company may not have such aemgnt in place; the relevant insolvency regime
(which is based on type of counterparty entity thadjurisdiction of organisation of the countergarhay

not support the enforceability of the agreementther Company may not have sought legal advice to
support the enforceability of the agreement. Isesavhere the Company has not determined an agneeme
to be enforceable, the related amounts are nattdfighe tabular disclosures.

In the statement of financial position, financiabats and financial liabilities are offset and présd on a
net basis only where there is a current legallyrrdable right to set off the recognised amounts a&am

intention to either settle on a net basis or tdisedhe asset and the liability simultaneously.the absence
of such conditions, financial assets and finarl@ilities are presented on a gross basis.

The following tables present information about diffsetting of financial instruments and relatedlaigral
amounts. The effect of master netting arrangementkateral agreements and other credit enhancesmen
on the Company’s exposure to credit risk is disdos note 14.
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(CONTINUED)
Gross and
net amounts
presented in
the statement Amounts not offset in the

of financial statement of financial Net
position @ position @ ® exposure®
Financial Cash
instruments  collateral ©
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
31 December 2017
Assets
Financial assets classified as held for trading:

Derivatives 592,979 (11,447) (553,952) 27,580
Financial assets designated at fair value thrquigfit or

loss:

Prepaid equity securities contracts 268,210 - (268,210) -
TOTAL 861,189 (11,447) (822,162) 27,580
Liabilities
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin

Derivatives 319,651 (11,447) (251,558) 56,646
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgh profit

or loss:

Issued Structured Notes 7,340,601 - - 7,340,601
TOTAL 7,660,252 (11,447) (251,558) 7,397,247

(1) Amounts include €27,580,000 of financial asstassified as held for trading — derivativésjl of financial assets designatec
fair value through profit or loss — prepaid equscurities contracts, €34,108,000fiofancial liabilities classified as held f
trading — derivatives and €6,229,321,000 of finahizabilities designated at fair value throughffiror loss — §sued Structure
Noteswhich are either not subject to master netting egemnts or collateral agreements or are subjectdio agreements but t
Company has not determined the agreements to alylegforceable.

(2) Amounts relate to master netting arrangememdiscallateral arrangements which have been detedrtiy the Company to be
legally enforceable but do not meet all criteriguieed for net presentation within the statemerftrafncial position.

(3) Cash collateral used to mitigate credit riskeaposures arising under derivative contracts aadad equity securities contracts
is determined and settled on a net basis and leesrbeognised in the statement of financial pasitiithin trade payables.

(4) In addition to the balances disclosed in thgetabove, certain trade receivables and payalbl€22280,000 not presented net
within the statement of financial position havedkg enforceable master netting agreements in pdacecan be offset in the
ordinary course of business and/ or in the evedeédult.

(5) Of the residual net exposure, intercompanyszmeduct legally enforceable netting arrangemeangsin place which would
allow for an additional €nil to be offset in thedorary course of business and/ or in the evenetdudt.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SUBJ ECT TO OFFSETTING
(CONTINUED)
Gross and
net amounts
presented in
the statement Amounts not offset in the

of financial statement of financial Net
position position @@ exposure®
Financial Cash
instruments  collateral ®
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
31 December 2016
Assets
Financial assets classified as held for trading:

Derivatives 590,179 (290,847)  (208,777) 90,555
Financial assets designated at fair value throudfit r

loss:

Prepaid equity securities contracts 367,160 - (344,760) 22,400
TOTAL 957,339 (290,847)  (553,537) 112,955
Liabilities
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin

Derivatives 514,302 (290,847)  (149,870) 73,585
Financial liabilitiesdesignated at fair value through pre

or loss:

Issued Structured Notes 7,352,026 - - 7,352,026

TOTAL 7,866,328 (290,847)  (149,870) 7,425,611

(1) Amounts include €90,555,000 of financial assetsdifeed as held for trading - derivative®&22,400,000 of financial ass:
designated at fair value through profit or lossepaid equity securities contracts, €73,585,00finahcial liabilities classied as
held for trading - derivatives and €6,288,204,00financial liabilities classified as designatedait value through profit or loss
issued Structured Notes which are either not stltjemaster netting agreements or collateral agee¢snorare subject to suc
agreements but the Company has not determinedjteeraents to be legally enforceable.

(2) Amounts relate to master netting arrangements afidteral arrangements which have been determiyeithd Company to t
legally enforceable, but do not meet all critegguired for net presentation within the stateméfihancial position.

(3) Cash collateral used to mitigate credit risk oncsxes arising under derivative contracts and jepguity securities adracts
is determined and settled on a net basis and leesrbeognised in the statement of financial pasitiithin trade payables.

(4) In addition to the balances disclosed in the tat#etain trade receivables and payables of €53)004not presented netithin
the statement of financial position have legalljoeteable master netting agreements in place andeaffset inthe ordinary
course of business and/ or in the event of default.

(5) Of the residual net exposure, intercompany cpsstuct legally enforceable netting arrangemergsraplace which would allo
for an additional €80,841,000 to be offset in thaireary course of business and/ or in the eveiefdult.
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a. Financial assets and liabilities recognised a&if value on a recurring basis

The following tables present the carrying valughe® Company’s financial assets and financial liaed

recognised at fair value on a recurring basissdiasl according to the fair value hierarchy.

2017 Valuation
Valuation  techniques
Quoted techniques with
prices in using  significant
active observableunobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets classified as held for trading:
Derivatives:
Interest rate contracts - 3,168 22,370 25,538
Equity contracts - 551,198 13,759 564,957
Foreign exchange contracts - 76 1,607 1,683
Commodities contracts - 539 262 801
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts - 268,210 - 268,210
Loans - 6,797,365 - 6,797,365
Total financial assets measured at fair value - 7,620,556 37,998 7,658,554
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin
Derivatives:
Interest rate contracts - 38,009 6,757 44,766
Equity contracts - 243,537 23,429 266,966
Foreign exchange contracts - 3,400 1,533 4,933
Commodities contracts - 1,050 1,936 2,986
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgb
profit or loss:
Certificates and warrants - 2,197,103 - 2,197,103
Notes - 4,779,994 363,504 5,143,498
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - 7,263,093 397,159 7,660,252
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ( CONTINUED)

a. Financial assets and liabilities recognised aaif value on a recurring basis (continued)
2016 Valuation
Valuation  techniques
Quoted techniques with
prices in using  significant
active observableunobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets classified as held for trading:
Derivatives - 541,671 48,508 590,179
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts - 367,160 - 367,160
Loans - 6,901,910 - 6,901,910
Total financial assets measured at fair value - 7,810,741 48,508 7,859,249
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin
Derivatives - 482,007 32,295 514,302
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgb
profit or loss:
Certificates and warrants - 2,421,095 - 2,421,095
Notes - 4,632,056 298,875 4,930,931
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - 7,535,158 331,170 7,866,328
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a.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ( CONTINUED)

Financial assets and liabilities recognised aaif value on a recurring basis (continued)

The Company’s valuation approach and fair valueanady categorisation for certain significant ckssf
financial instruments recognised at fair value ar@uirring basis is as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities classifid as held for trading

Asset and Liability / Valuation Technique

Valuation Hierarchy Classification

Derivatives

OTC Derivative Contracts

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swapl aption contracts related to
interest rates, foreign currencies, credit standingference entities, equity prices|
or commodity prices.

Depending on the product and the terms of thesgetion, the fair value of OTC
derivative products can be modeled using a sefigschniques, including closed-
form analytic formulas, such as the Black-Scholgstion-pricing model,
simulation models or a combination thereof. Manigipg models do not entail
material subjectivity as the methodologies emplogedot necessitate significant
judgment, since model inputs may be observed frainely quoted markets, as is
the case for generic interest rate swaps, manytyequommodity and foreign
currency option contracts, and certain CDS. In ¢ase of more established
derivative products, the pricing models used byGoenpany are widely accepted
by the financial services industry.

More complex OTC derivative products are typicddiss liquid and require more
judgment in the implementation of the valuationht@que since direct trading
activity or quotes are unobservable. This includegain types of interest rate
derivatives with both volatility and correlation posure, equity, commodity or
foreign currency derivatives which are either landated or include exposure to
multiple underlyings, and credit derivatives, irdihg CDS on certain mortgage-
or asset-backed securities and basket CDS. Whese thputs are unobservable
relationships to observable data points, based istoric and/ or implied
observations, may be employed as a techniqueitoastthe model input values.

Generally Level 2 - OTC derivative
products valued using observable inputs,
or where the unobservable input is not
deemed significant.

Level 3 - OTC derivative products for
which the unobservable input is deemed
significant

Financial assets andinancial liabilities designated at fair value thraug

h profit and loss

Prepaid equity securities contracts and issuedc@timed Notes designated at fair valug

through profit or loss

The Company issues Structured Notes and tradepaior equity securities
contracts that have coupon or repayment termsdinkehe performance of debt
or equity securities, indices, currencies or comitiexi

Fair value of Structured Notes and traded preajdity securities contracts is
determined using valuation models for the derivatand debt portions of the
Structured Notes and traded prepaid equity seesritiontracts. These modeld
incorporate observable inputs referencing identiocal comparable securities,
including prices to which the notes are linkedeiast rate yield curves, option
volatility and currency rates, and commaodity origgprices.

Independent, external and traded prices for thesnare considered as well. The
impact of the Company’s own credit spreads is @lsluded based on observed
secondary bond market spreads.

Generally Level 2

Level 3 - in instances where the
unobservable inputs are deemed
significant
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ( CONTINUED)

a. Financial assets and liabilities recognised aaif value on a recurring basis (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities designad at fair value through profit and los:

Notes * Generally Level 2
* Notes give a risk exposure tailored to marketvgi@nd risk appetite and mainly] « Level 3 - Notes with significant
provide exposure to the underlying single nametggequity index or portfolio of unobservable inputs

equities. Typically, the redemption payment of tinée is significantly dependent
on the value of embedded equity derivatives. Inegan call and put options,
digital options, straddles and callability featuege combined to create a bespokge
coupon rate or redemption payoff for each noteaissa, with risk exposure to one|
or more equity underlyings or indices. The Compamajues the embedded
derivatives using market standard models, whichaasessed for appropriatenesp
at least annually. Model inputs, such as equityéod rates, equity implied

volatility and equity correlations are marked sutiat the fair value of the

derivatives match prices observable in the intedefemarkets. In arriving at fair

value, the Company uses discount rates appropdadtes funding rates specific to
the instrument. In general, this results in ovenhigtes being used to discount thg
Company assets and liabilities. In addition, sitheenotes bear Morgan Stanley’q
credit risk, the Company considers this when agsgske fair value of the notes,
by adjusting the discount rates to reflect the aileng credit spread at the
reporting date.

* The Company has a small number of notes whereakle flows due on the notes}
is dependent on embedded derivatives linked tantieeest rate, foreign exchange|
or commodity markets. The Company values thesesniotthe same way as for
equity-linked notes, by using market standard nodeld marking the inputs to
match prices observed in the inter-dealer OTC ntark8imilarly to equity-linked
notes, these issuances bear Morgan Stanley’s arielit and the valuation is
assessed accordingly.

U

Certificates and warrants *  Level2

* Certificates and warrants provide exposure touthaerlying single nhame equity,
equity index or portfolio of equities. They thenefgrovide risk exposure to the
value of the underlying position and to the dividenpaid or received. The
Company values the underlying position using okegles data where available
(for instance, exchange closing prices), or altiévaly using information from
third parties (for example net asset values obthfinem fund administrators) or
using Morgan Stanley’s own valuation assumptioneeduired. The Company
estimates future dividend payments using a varétavailable data, including
market prices for forwards and futures, analytieafiew and estimates of future
tax rates, incorporating the Company’s own assumptiwhere required. The
certificates and warrants can typically be redeemedhort notice and so the
certificates and warrants provide minimal exposar¢he credit risk of Morgan
Stanley.

Loans e Level2

* The fair value of loans to other Morgan Stanlap@ undertakings is estimated
based on the present value of expected future ftash using its best estimate of
interest rate yield curves.

b. Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the faivalue hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities recognised at fair value on a recurringbasis

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Lewaf the fair value hierarchy during the current and
prior year.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ( CONTINUED)
c. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabilits recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

The following tables present the changes in thevaiue of the Company’s Level 3 financial assetd a
financial liabilities for the years ended 31 DecemB017 and 31 December 2016. Level 3 instrumeafs m
be hedged with instruments classified in Level Be Tealised and unrealised gains/ (losses) fotsaasel
liabilities within the Level 3 category presentedthe following tables do not reflect the relatealised
and unrealised gains/ (losses) on hedging instrtsribat have been classified by the Company witén
Level 2 category.

Unrealised gains/ (losses) during the period feetsand liabilities within the Level 3 categorgsented
in the following tables herein may include changefair value during the period that were attrithléato
both observable and unobservable inputs.

2017 Unrealised
gains /

(losses) for
Level 3 assets

Net lliabilities
Total gains or transfers outstanding
Balance (losses) = in and/or  Balance at as at 31
at1l recognised in § § g out of 31 December
January income S < % Level 3 December 2017
2017 statemen® a 3 3 @ 2017 @
€'000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets classifiests
held for trading:
Net derivative contractd: 16,213 (6,654) - - (5,326) 110 4,343 (2,996)
Total financial assets
measured at fair value 16,213 (6,654) - - (5,326 110 4,343 (2,996)
Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Notes (298,875) (9,596) - (234,018) 67,054 111,931 (363,504) (4,725)
Total financial liabilities
measured at fair value (298,875) (9,596) - (234,018) 67,054 111,931 (363,504) (4,725)

(1) The total gains or (losses) are recognisethéniricane statement as detailed in the financial instrumancounting policy (no
3c).

(2) For financial assets and financial liabilitidest were transferred into and out of Level 3 dgirihe year, gains oraéses) ar
presented as if the assets or liabilities had beersferred into or out of Level 3 as at the beigigrof the year.

(3) Amounts represent unrealised gains or (losfmsthe year ended 31 December 20%fated to assets and liabilities ¢
outstanding at 31 December 2017. Timeealised gains or (losses) are recognised ittame statement as detailed in the finar

instruments accounting policy (note 3c).
(4) Net derivative contracts represent Financiaktsclassified as held for trading — derivativati@ets net ofinancial liabilities
classified as held for trading — derivative contsac
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (  CONTINUED)

c. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabikts recognised at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

During the year, the Company reclassified approtéiya€2,273,000 of net derivative contracts (2016:
€1,795,000) and €45,311,000 of issued StructureddN@016: €47,550,000) from Level 2 to Level eT
reclassifications were due to a reduction in thtume of recently executed transactions or a lack of
available broker quotes for these instruments, sliehcertain significant inputs became unobserzabl

During the year, the Company reclassified approtéitya€2,383,000 of net derivative contracts (2016:
€38,165,000) and €157,242,000 of issued Structiegds (2016: €128,644,000) from Level 3 to Level 2.
The reclassifications were due to the availabiitynarket quotations for these or comparable imsénts,

or available broker quotes, or consensus datathatitertain significant inputs became observable.

2016 Unrealised
gains /

(losses) for
Level 3 assets

Net lliabilities
Total gains or transfers outstanding
Balance (losses) = in and/or Balance at as at 31
at1l recognised in ﬁ § g out of 31 December
January income S S % Level 3 December 2016
2016  statement g 3 3 @ 2016 @
€'000 €000  €'000 €'000 €000 €000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets designated
at fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities
contracts 20,270 2,820 - - (20,098)(2,992) - -
Total financial assets
measured at fair value 20,270 2,820 - - (20,098) (2,992 - -
Financial liabilities classified
as held for trading:
Net derivative contracté: (28,455) 12,248 - - (3,950) 36,370 16,213 17,374
Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Notes (320,057) (50,907) - (127,887) 118,882 81,094 (298,875)  (42,689)
Total financial liabilities
measured at fair value (348,512) (38,659) - (127,887) 114,932 117,464 (282,662)  (25,315)

(1) The total gains or (losses) are recognisethéniricone statement as detailed in the financial instrusiantounting policy (no
3c).

(2) For financial assets and financial liabilitidet were transferred into and out of Level 3 dgrrihe year, gains oraéses) ar
presented as if the assets or liabilities had beersferred into or out of Level 3 as at the beigigrof the year.

(3) Amounts represent unrealised gains or (losfmsthe year ended 31 December 2016 related totsassel liabilities stil
outstanding at 31 December 2016. Timeealised gains or (losses) are recognised ittame statement as detailed in the finar
instruments accounting policy (note 3c).

(4) Net derivative contracts represent Financiaktsclassified as held for trading — derivativat@ets net ofinancial liabilities
classified as held for trading — derivative contisac
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16.
d.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ( CONTINUED)

Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahities recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

The following disclosures provide information ore thensitivity of fair value measurements to keyisp
and assumptions.

1.

Quantitative information about and qualitative seévisy of significant unobservable inputs.

The following table provides information on the wation techniques, significant unobservable
inputs and their ranges and averages for each roafegory of assets and liabilities measured at fai
value on a recurring basis with a significant Le¥ddalance.

The level of aggregation and breadth of productssedhe range of inputs to be wide and not evenly
distributed across the inventory. Further, thegeaaf unobservable inputs may differ across firms i
the financial services industry because of diversitthe types of products included in each firm's
inventory. The following disclosures also incluggalitative information on the sensitivity of the
fair value measurements to changes in the signifisaobservable inputs. There are no predictable
relationships between multiple significant unobsaéte inputs attributable to a given valuation
technique. A single amount is disclosed when therao significant difference between the
minimum, maximum and average (weighted averagétas average / median).
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (  CONTINUED)

d. Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiies recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

2017 Fair
value Predominant valuation techniques/ Range®
€000 Significant unobservable inputs (Averages§®

ASSETS

Financial assets classified as held for trading:

- Net derivative contract§?
- Interest rate 15,613 Option model
Interest rate - Foreign exchange correlation  18% to 38% (25%)

Net asset value (“NAV”)

NAV 100% (100%)
- Equity (9,670) Option model
At the money volatility 4% to 42% (18%)
Volatility skew -2% to 0% (0%)
Equity — Equity correlation 35% to 89% (60%)
Equity — Foreign exchange correlation -57% to 3080%)
- Commodities (1,674) Option model
Commodity volatility 15% to 18% (17%)
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thraugh profit or loss:
- Notes (363,504) Option model
At the money volatility 6% to 42% (2%)
Volatility skew -2% to 0% (-1%)
Equity — Equity correlation 41% to 88% (53%)
Equity — Foreign exchange correlation -60% to -1(738%)
Interest rate - Foreign exchange correlation ~ 18% to 38% (25%)
Commodity volatility 15% to 18% (17%)
NAV

NAV

100% (100%)

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financialess classified as held for trading — derivativetcts net of financial liabilities

classified as held for trading — derivative contsac
(2) The ranges of significant unobservable inpoesrapresented in percentages.

(3) Amounts represent weighted averages which @lated by weighting each input by the fair vatiighe respective financial

instruments except for derivative instruments whiepets are weighted by risk.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (  CONTINUED)

d. Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiies recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

2016 Fair
value Predominant valuation techniques/ Range®
€000 Significant unobservable inputs (Averages§®
ASSETS

Financial assets classified as held for trading:

- Net derivative contract§?

Option model

At the money volatility

Volatility skew

Equity — Equity correlation

Equity — Foreign exchange correlation

NAV

NAV

7% to 42% (21%)
2% to 0% (-1%)
35% to 95% (60%)

-85% to 4026%)

100% (100%)

- Equity 16,213
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thraugh profit or loss:
- Notes (298,875)

Option model

At the money volatility

Volatility skew

Equity — Equity correlation

Equity — Foreign exchange correlation

NAV

NAV

7% to 42% (2/%)
2% to 0% (-1%)
35% to 95% (58%)

-85% to J530%)

100% (100%)

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financiaess classified as held for trading — derivativatracts net of financial liabilities

classified as held for trading — derivative contisac

(2) The ranges of significant unobservable inpoesrapresented in percentages.

(3) Amounts represent weighted averages which al@ilated by weighting each input by the fair vatighe respective financial
instruments except for derivative instruments whiepets are weighted by risk.
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16.
d.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (

(continued)

CONTINUED)

Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabities recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

Significant Unobservable Inputs — Description

Sensitivity

Correlation-A pricing input where the payoff is driven by mdhan one underlying risk|
Correlation is a measure of the relationship betmtbe movements of two variables (i.
how the change in one variable influences a changéhe other variable). Credi
correlation, for example, is the factor that desesithe relationship between the probabil
of individual entities to default on obligationsdathe joint probability of multiple entitieg
to default on obligations.

In general, an increase (decrease) to th
correlation would result in an impact to
fair value, but the magnitude and directi
tyof the impact would depend on whether|

the Company is long or short the expos

b

D

on

re.

Volatility-The measure of the variability in possible retufmisan instrument given how
much that instrument changes in value over timdatiity is a pricing input for options,
and, generally, the lower the volatility, the leis&y the option. The level of volatility use
in the valuation of a particular option dependsaamumber of factors, including the natu
of the risk underlying that option (e.g. the vdigtiof a particular underlying equity
security may be significantly different from that @ particular underlying commaodity
index), the tenor and the strike price of the aptio

In general, an increase (decrease) tg
volatility would result in an impact to tl
fair value, but the magnitude and direc
e of the impact would degnd on whethe
the Company is long or short the expos

Volatility skewThe measure of the difference in implied volatifity options with identical
underliers and expiry dates but with differentksts. The implied volatility for an option
with a strike price that is above or below the entrprice of an underlying asset wi
typically deviate from the implied volatility fornaoption with a strike price equal to th
current price of that same underlying asset.

In general, an increase (decrease) tg

volatility skew would result in an impg
| to the fair value, but the rgaitude an
e direction of the impactvould depend o
whether the Companig long or short th
exposure.

NAV-A pricing input that is the value of an entity'ssats minus the value of its liabilitieg
often in relation to open-end or mutual funds, sisbares of such funds registered with
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission are redkaitrteeir net asset value. Shares 4
interests in such funds are not traded betweersiokg but are issued by the fund to eq
new investor and redeemed by the fund when an tovesthdraws. A fund will issue and
redeem shares and interests at a price calculgtesfdrence to the NAV of the fund, witl
the intention that new investors receive a fairpprtion of the fund and redeemin
investors receive a fair proportion of the fundéue in cash.

, In general, an increase (decrease) tg
heNAV would result in a higher (lower) fg
ndvalug but the magnitude and direction
chthe impactwould depend on whether {

Company is long or short the exposure.

!

Sensitivity of fair values to changing signifitassumptions to reasonably possible alternatives.

All financial instruments are valued in accordamdth the techniques outlined in the fair value
hierarchy disclosure above. Some of these techsjgneluding those used to value instruments
categorised in Level 3 of the fair value hierarcare dependent on unobservable parameters and
the fair value for these financial instruments haen determined using parameters appropriate for

the valuation methodology based on prevailing markedence.

unobservable parameters could have a range ofrrelalygpossi

ble alternative values.

In estimating the change in fair value, to providfermation about the variability of the fair value
measurement, the unobservable parameters weredvémiethe extremes of the ranges of
reasonably possible alternatives using statistieehniques, such as dispersion in comparable
observable external inputs for similar asset cklshéstoric data or judgement if a statistical
technique is not appropriate. Where a financiatrimsent has more than one unobservable
parameter, the sensitivity analysis reflects theatgst reasonably possible increase or decrease to
fair value by varying the assumptions individuallyis unlikely that all unobservable parameters
would be concurrently at the extreme range of fdssilternative assumptions and therefore the
sensitivity shown below is likely to be greaterritthe actual uncertainty relating to the financial

instruments.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (  CONTINUED)

d. Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiies recognised at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

The following tables present the sensitivity of ttair value of Level 3 financial assets and finahci
liabilities to reasonably possible alternative asgtions, providing quantitative information on the
potential variability of the fair value measurement

Effect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

2017 Increase in fair Decrease in fait
Fair value value value
€'000 €'000 €'000

Financial assets classified as held for trading:
Net derivatives contrac® 4,343 (859) (291)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Notes (363,504) (3,257) 4,315

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financiakess classified as held for tradinglerivative contracts net of financial liabiliti
classified as held for trading — derivative cortsadhe reasonably possible alternative assumptoaspplied to derative
assets and derivative liabilities separately whesessing potential variability of the fair valueaserement.

Effect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

2016 Increase in fair Decrease in fait
Fair value value value
€'000 €'000 €'000

Financial assets classified as held for trading:
Net derivatives contract8: 16,213 1,294 (1,294)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Notes (298,875) (1,294) 1,294

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financiak#s classified as held for trading — derivativetaets net of financial liabilities
classified as held for trading — derivative contsadhe reasonably possible alternative assumpticmapplied to derivative
assets and derivative liabilities separately whesessing potential variability of the fair valueaserement.

Certain methodology enhancements have been mad@®1arin estimating the sensitivity of the fair wal
of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabdgtito reasonably possible alternative assumptions.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (  CONTINUED)

e. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oa non-recurring basis

Non-recurring fair value measurements of assetdiahilities are those which are required or peteditin
the statement of financial position in particulacemstances. There were no assets or liabilitieasured
at fair value on a non-recurring basis during tharyor prior year.

17. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VAL UE

For all financial instruments not measured at featue, the carrying amount is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value due to thartsterm nature of these assets and liabilities.

Regarding the CPECs, its carrying value includimgdccrued yield in ‘Other payables’, as detaifedate
8, is considered in aggregate as an approximafids fair value.

18. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Morgan Stanley Group manages its capital otobatybasis with consideration for its legal eeti
The capital managed by the Morgan Stanley Groumdiyoincludes ordinary share capital, preference
share capital, subordinated loans and reserves.

The Morgan Stanley Group’s required capital (“ReediCapital”) estimation is based on the Required
Capital Framework, an internal capital adequacysuesa This framework is a risk-based and leverage u
of-capital measure, which is compared with the Maor@tanley Group’s regulatory capital to ensuré tha
the Morgan Stanley Group maintains an amount ofigy@oncern capital after absorbing potential losses
from stress events where applicable, at a poitinie. The Morgan Stanley Group defines the diffies
between its total average common equity and the cfuttme average common equity amounts allocated to
our business segments as Parent Company equity.Mbingan Stanley Group generally holds Parent
Company equity for prospective regulatory requiretegorganic growth, acquisitions and other capital
needs.

The Required Capital Framework is expected to evolver time in response to changes in the business
and regulatory environment, for example, to incoap® stress testing or enhancements in modelling
techniques. The Morgan Stanley Group will contitmevaluate the framework with respect to the ichpa
of future regulatory requirements, as appropriate.

The Morgan Stanley Group actively manages its dateed capital position based upon, among other
things, business opportunities, risks, capital labdity and rates of return together with intermalpital
policies, regulatory requirements and rating ageqagelines and, therefore, in the future may expan
contract its capital base to address the changiedsof its businesses.

The Morgan Stanley Group also aims to adequatglitalse at a legal entity level whilst safeguagdthat
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern anduring that it meets all regulatory capital iezents,
so that it can continue to provide returns forMagan Stanley Group.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struetas described above, the Company may adjust tbargm
of dividends paid, return capital to shareholdessje new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company manages the following items as capital:

2017 2016

€'000 €'000

Share capital 15,018 15,018
Reserves 24,765 23,218
39,783 38,236
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Parent and ultimate controlling entity

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Angdes Investments Codperatieve U.A. which is
registered in The Netherlands.

The ultimate parent undertaking and controllingitgrdnd the largest group of which the Company is a
member and for which group financial statements @epared is Morgan Stanley. Morgan Stanley is
incorporated in the State of Delaware, the UniteateS of America and copies of its financial staata
can be obtained from www.morganstanley.com/investations.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are defined as thosensehswing authority and responsibility for planning
directing and controlling the activities of the Coamy. Key management personnel include the Bofrd o
Directors of the Company plus key business unitagament.

Key management personnel compensation comprisefoltbeing:

2017 2016
€'000 €'000
Short-term employee benefits 24 24
Post-employment benefits 1 1
Share-based payments 2 1
Other long-term employee benefits 1 1
28 27

The share-based payment costs disclosed abovetrdfte amortisation of equity-based awards gratded
key management personnel over the last three pearsare therefore not directly aligned with othiaiffs
costs in the current year.

Key management personnel compensation is borneghgr Morgan Stanley Group undertakings in both
the current and prior years.

In addition to the above, TMF Management B.V., motthe Morgan Stanley Group, provided key
management personnel services to the Company farhwa fee of €456,000 was charged for the year
(2016: €406,000) and of which €nil was accruedt&ld@ecember 2017 (2016: €nil).
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Transactions with related parties

The Morgan Stanley Group conducts business fontsliglobally through a combination of both functbn

and legal entity organisational structures. Acaagtii, the Company is closely integrated with the
operations of the Morgan Stanley Group and entais transactions with other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings on an arm’s length basis for the mep®f utilising financing, trading and risk managet,

and infrastructure services. The nature of thekionships along with information about the teat®ns

and outstanding balances is given below. All theamts outstanding as disclosed below are unseeungd

will be settled via inter-company mechanisms. Tlen@any has not recognised any expense and has made
no provision for impairment relating to the amowfitoutstanding balances from related parties (2016:
£€nil).

In addition, the management and execution of bssisgrategies on a global basis results in manyfor
Stanley transactions impacting a number of Morgtani8y Group undertakings. The Morgan Stanley
Group operates a number of intra-group policiesrtsure that, where possible, revenues and relatgd c
are matched. For the year ended 31 December 201t doss of €4,287,000 (2016: net gain of
€13,146,000) was recognised in the income stateareihg from such policies.

Funding

The Company receives funding from and provides ifumdo other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings in
the following forms:

General funding

General funding is undated, unsecured, floating fanding. Funding may be received or provided for
specific transaction related funding requiremeoitdpr general operational purposes. The intedst are
established by the Morgan Stanley Group Treasungtion for all entities within the Morgan Stanley
Group and approximate the market rate of intedest the Morgan Stanley Group incurs in funding its
business.

Other funding

Other funding includes CPECs issued to the Comgadtiyect parent undertaking, Archimedes Investments
Cobperatieve U.A.. The specific terms of the relatield are detailed in note 8.

Details of the outstanding balances on these fundimangements and the related interest income or
expense recognised in the income statement durgdar are shown in the table below:
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

2017 2016
Interest Balance Interest Balance
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Amounts due from the Company’s indirect
parent undertaking 8,605 1,163,051 12,7511,152,528
Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings 3,190 629,253 1,946 495,896
11,795 1,792,304 14,697 1,648,424
Amounts due to the Company’s direct
and indirect parent undertakings 4,490 1,176,672 14,823 1,181,304
Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings 680 4,991 184 3,193
5,170 1,181,663 15,007 1,184,497

Trading and risk management

The Company issues Structured Notes and hedgebligations arising from the issuance by enteritg i
prepaid equity securities contracts, derivativetiaats and loans designated at fair value througfitpor
loss with other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings.such transactions are entered into on an arm’s
length basis. The total amounts receivable andipaym issued Structured Notes, prepaid equityritezsi
contracts, derivative contracts and loans desigratéair value through profit or loss were asduis:

2017 2016
Interest Balance Interest Balance
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings 5 7,684,278 - 7,917,731
Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings (941) 2,036,776 - 2,307,590

The Company has received collateral of €575,669(Q006: €427,903,000) from other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings to mitigate credit risk on expes arising under derivatives contracts and pdepai
equity securities contracts between the Companyoémet Morgan Stanley Group undertakings.

Infrastructure services

The Company uses infrastructure services includireg provision of office facilities, operated by eth
Morgan Stanley Group undertakings at no charge.

20. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 27 February 2018, the maturity date of the CPE&samended to 49 years from the date of issuance.
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Independent auditor’s report

The independent auditor’s report is recorded omthé page.

Statutory rules concerning appropriation of the netresult

The Articles of Association of the Company provitiat the net result for the year is at the dispmsiof
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Distribution can only be made to the extent that $fhareholder’s equity exceeds the reserves prbvate
by the Articles of Association. The Board of Direct must grant its approval which it can only wilthin
the event that it knows or reasonably should han@k that, following the distribution, the Companifi
not be able to continue with the payments of itstei®ecoming due and payable in the foreseeahlesfut

Subsequent events

On 27 February 2018, the maturity date of the CPE&samended to 49 years from the date of issuance.
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Morgan Stanley B.V.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017 INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

Our opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2017 of Morgan Stanley B.V., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Morgan Stanley B.V. as at December 31, 2017, and of its result and its cash flows for 2017 in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with
Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:
1. The statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017.

2. The following statements for 2017: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows.

3. The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of Morgan Stanley B.V. in accordance with the EU Regulation on specific requirements
regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities, the “Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties” (Wta, Audit
firms supervision act), the “Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-
opdrachten” (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence)
and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the
Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Deloitte Accountants B.V. is registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce and Industry in Rotterdam number
24362853. Deloitte Accountants B.V. is a Netherlands affiliate of Deloitte NWE LLP, a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited.

3114598300/2018.042739/ES/1
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Materiality

Based on our professional judgement we determined the materiality for the financial statements as a whole at
EUR 94,800,000. The materiality is based on 1% of Total Assets. We have also taken into account
misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the users of the financial
statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with Board of Directors that misstatements in excess of EUR 1,896,000, which are identified
during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be
reported on qualitative grounds.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to Board of Directors. The
key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Financial Instruments, including valuation and accounting

Key audit matter

The risk associated with the valuation assertion relates to the valuation of fair value hierarchy level 3
issuances because this can require significant management judgment. We note that although the entity does
not apply hedge accounting, it reduces profit and less volatility through economic hedging and recording the
financial instruments held on the balance at fair value. Valuation of level 3 financial instruments often
requires the usage of bespoke valuation models and unobservable inputs to determine the fair value which
can be highly subjective. The valuations of these instruments are typically more complex and may not be
readily observable due to illiquid markets or low trading volumes, and accordingly, are more difficult to
estimate. The subjectivity involved in the valuation of level 3 inventory means there is an inherently greater
risk of material misstatement. Reference is made to note 3.d and note 16 of the financial statements of
Morgan Stanley B.V. as at December 31, 2017.

Response

Our testing over the valuation assertion has included procedures in relation to the controls over positions
carried at fair value, procedures in relation to model controls and the performance of substantive testing
through independent revaluations, methodology reviews and testing of key inputs for a sample of positions.
As part of these procedures we challenged management assumptions in the determination of the valuation
models with the support of internal financial instrument valuation experts.

Based on the work performed we observed that the hedge of the financial assets and financial liabilities does
not net to nil as December 31, 2017 or December 31, 2016. This is due to the holding of cash and short-
term deposits, and also pending trades which are included within trade receivables and trade payables.
When these balances are included the trading balance sheet nets flat. We have performed a reconciliation to
confirm this.
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REPORT ON THE OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The Annual Report contain other
information that consists of:

e Directors’ Report.

e Directors’ Responsibility Statement.

e Other Information, including but not limited to the topics prescribed by Dutch Civil Code 2:392.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:

e Is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements.

e Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit
of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatements.

By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is substantially less than the
scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the Directors’ Report in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and the other information as required by Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Directos’ Responsibility Statement.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Engagement

We were engaged by Board of Directors as auditor of Morgan Stanley B.V. as of the year 2001 and have
operated as statutory auditor ever since that financial year.

No prohibited non-audit services

We have not provided prohibited non-audit services as referred to in Article 5(1) of the EU Regulation on
specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities.

DESCRIPTION OF RESPONSIBILITIES REGARDING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Responsibilities of management and Audit Committee for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is

responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned,
management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not
detect all material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the

evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the
audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our audit included e.g.:

e Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

e Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures.
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e Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identified
during our audit. In this respect we also submit an additional report to the audit committee in accordance
with Article 11 of the EU Regulation on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest
entities. The information included in this additional report is consistent with our audit opinion in this
auditor’s report.

From the matters communicated with Board of Directors, we determine the key audit matters: those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public interest.

Amsterdam, April 24, 2018

Deloitte Accountants B.V.

M. van Luijk
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